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JamesMarta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Governing Board
San Mateo Union High School District
San Mateo, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financia statementsof the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the San Mateo Union High School District (the” District”), asof and for
the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notesto the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financia statements as listed in the table of contents.

M anagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management isresponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statementsin accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financia
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financia statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americaand the standards
applicableto financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sandards, issued by the Comptroller Genera of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ sjudgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the district’ s preparation and fair presentation of
thefinancial statementsin order to design audit proceduresthat are appropriatein the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the district’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonabl eness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evauating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our audit
opinions.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Didtrict, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changesin financial position and, where applicable, cash
flowsthereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balance-Budget (Non-
GAAP) and Actual - General Fund, Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios,
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Schedul e of Pension Contributionsbe presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not apart of thebasic financia statements,
isrequired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considersit to bean essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing theinformation for consistency with
management’ sresponsesto our inquiries, thebasicfinancia statements, and other knowledgewe obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprisethe District’ shasic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information aslisted inthe
table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federa awards, as required by the August 2020
edition of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federa Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards, Subpart F — Audit Requirements (Uniform Guidance),
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not arequired part of the basic financia statements.

The supplementary information as listed in the table of contentsis the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financia statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to preparethe basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information as
listed in the table of contentsisfairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
asawhole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have a so issued our report dated November 23, 2020,
except for Note 1EE, asto which thedateisMay 10, 2023 on our consideration of District’ sinternal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standardsin considering District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

gaﬂqu#/f—w«fw"af-ip

James Marta & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Sacramento, California

November 23, 2020 except for Note 1EE, asto which the date is January 25, 2024
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

DISTRICT PROFILE

The San Mateo Union High School District servesthe cities of San Mateo, San Bruno, Burlingame, Foster City,
and Millbrae aswell asthetown of Hillsborough. It operates six comprehensive high schools, acharter school, a
continuation high school, a middle college program and an adult school. The District is located in northern
Silicon Valley approximately 30 miles south of San Francisco next top U.S. Highway 101.

The District is categorized as Basic Aid funded and receives 89% of its revenues from local property taxes.
Property values within the District have remained strong and inventory low. The District's assessed valuation
(AV) growth for 2020 was 7.2% higher than the prior year’s AV growth.

The District’ s enrollment began to increase in 2013. The District’ s average daily attendance (ADA) for grades
ninth through twelfth was 8,708. Design Technology Charter High School had 550 ADA in grades ninethrough
eleven and the Adult School had over 5,000 ADA. The District’s enrollment is anticipated to gradually slow
through 2029.

The Digtrict currently employs approximately 1,500 staff members.

Beginning in March of the current fiscal year, the world experienced the Covid-19 pandemic. As aresult, the
Governor and San Mateo County enacted “ Shelter in Place” orders that have changed about everything in our
lives: how wework, play, and learn have al been dramatically altered. The pandemic has also upended the state
education budgets, leaving the District unsure how to plan for coming needs. Thisincluded extensive operational
changes such as paths of travel, wellness checks, distance learning, delivery method platforms, security,
automation to eliminate germ infested paper, extensive training for both staff and students on effective distance
learning practices, grading, internet accessfor all students, extensive cleaning and sterilizing protocols, feeding
students (especialy those most impacted), and revising the format of the board meetings.

Each day wasanew day and since a pandemic had not been experienced in our lifetime, the roadmap out remains
awork in progress. While cutsto school budgets have not yet been as severe asoriginally predicted, the evidence
indicates more austere budget challenges lie ahead.

This section of District’s 2019-20 annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s
financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the
District’ sfinancial statements, which immediately follow this section.

MISSION
The mission of the District isto challenge and motivate each student to achieve full potential as aresponsible

member of our diverse community, in a safe learning environment that promotes intellectual growth, health,
creativity and respect for self and others.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

BELIEFS

We believe that:
o Eachindividua has equal inherent dignity and worth.
Family is essential to the development of an individual's values.
L earning devel opsthe aesthetic, emotional, intellectual, practical, and socia aspects of thewhole person.
Learning is aunique, personal, and lifelong experience.
Motivation is essential for reaching one's potential.
Higher expectations yield higher results.
Communities have a responsibility to the individual and the individua has a responsibility to the
community.
o Diversity enriches the community.

O O O 0O 0 O

Enrollment

9 2426 | 2,399 | 2,331 | 2,392 | 2279 | 2353 | 2373| 2372

10 2,425 | 2,455 | 2439 | 2377| 2438| 2316| 2,381 | 2,393

11 2415 | 2,450 | 2,489 | 2482 | 2421 | 2475| 2340| 2,397

12 2529 | 2,497 | 2536| 2578| 2571 | 2488 | 2538| 2,399

Subtotals 9,795 | 9801 | 9,795| 9,829 | 9,709 | 9632| 9632 | 9561
Pct Chg 3.8%| 0.1%| -0.1%| 0.3%| -1.2%| -0.8%| 0.0%| -0.7%

SDC 75 76 76 78 76 75 75 74

Totals 9870 | 9,877 | 9871| 9907 | 9,785 | 9,707 | 9,707 | 9,635

570 550 550 550 550 550 550 550

9300 | 9327 | 9321 | 9357 | 9235 | 9,157 | 9,157 | 9,085

2019-20 CBEDS

0 Primary enrollment 9,317
0 English Learners 969
o Eligible Immigrants 495
0 Gifted and Talented 1,077
0 Specia Education 977
0 Economically Disadvantaged 2,460

The preceding table shows the enrollment history for the District including its charter school. Design Technology
Charter High School’ sfirst year of operation was 2014-15. Y ou will note that Design Technology’ s enrolIment
increased thereafter until al four grades were feathered in and the high school was fully operational.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Satement of Net Position and the Satement of Activities and Change in Net Position

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the District asawhole
and about itsactivities. These statementsincludeall assetsand liabilities of the District using the accrual basisof
accounting, whichissimilar to the accounting system used by most private-sector companies. All of the current
year' s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash isreceived or paid.

Thesetwo statementsreport the District’ snet position and changes. Net positionisthe difference between assets
and liabilitiesand isoneway to measure the Digtrict’ sfinancial health or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the District’s enrollment, property tax base, and the
condition of the District’ s facilities.

The relationship between revenues and expenses impacts the District’ s financial operating results. Basic Aid
school districts are dependent upon the growth of assessed valuation and changesin enroliment. The Board has
set up severa safeguards to protect its assets by ensuring unforeseen changesin the assessed valuation do not
negatively impact the educational programs we provide to students. The quality of the education, breadth and
depth of support programs and services for all students and the safety of our schools are critical. Covid-19 has
challenged our ability to teach all students.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thefund financia statements are designed to report information about the District’ smost significant funds and
are used to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are
required by Statelaw and by bond covenants. The District establishes other fundsto control and manage money
for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain revenues. Fund financial statementsfocuson
individual parts of the District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than in the District-wide
statements.

0 Governmenta fund statements tell how basic services such as instruction and pupil services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Most of the District’s basic
services are included in governmental funds. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the District-wide statements, we provide additional information in the
reconciliation statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

0 Proprietary fund statements offer financial information about the activitiesthe Digtrict operates on acost
reimbursement basis, such asthe self-insurancefund. Proprietary fundsarereported in the sasmeway as
in the District-wide statements.

0 Fiduciary fund statements provide information about thefinancial rel ationshipsin which the District acts
solely as atrustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong such as associated
student body accounts. The District isresponsible for ensuring that the assetsreported in thesefundsare
used only for their intended purposes. All of the District’ sfiduciary activitiesare reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude
these activitiesfrom the District-widefinancia statements because the District cannot usethese assetsto
finance its operations.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notesto the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to afull understanding of
the data provided in District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are
followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the financia
statementswith acomparison of the District’ sgeneral fund budget, both the adopted and final version, with year-
end actuals.

DISTRICT ACTIVITIES

o

o

o

o

Continued to developed instructional programsto close the achievement gap for English Learners and
disadvantaged students.

Updated and implemented board policies including grading policies and the student responsible use
policy relative to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Drafted, approved and negotiated an amended and restated agreement regarding operational and
maintenance sharing costs between the City of Burlingame and the San Mateo Union High School
District for the use of the swimming pool at Burlingame High School.

Updated and implemented new job descriptions and deleted job descriptions no longer relevant.
Evaluated critical need and location of teacher/staff housing to attract and retain exemplary teachersand
staff.

TheDistrict investigated options and the future use/disposition of the Crestmoor school siteincluding the
potential of selling the site. The Board of Trustees declared the Crestmoor site surplus and submitted a
waiver regquest to the California Department of Education to waive certain surplus property procedures.
The District issued a Request for Proposals for rea estate brokers, legal counsel and public relations
servicesrelated to potentia sale of the Crestmoor site. Firmswereinterviewed and then sel ected based
on established criteria.

The District issued a Request for Quadlifications and Proposals, which was broadly published and
advertised to solicit quality developersfor the sale and devel opment of the Crestmoor High School site.
Statements of Qualificationswerereceived from eleven firmsand eight firms passed the review process
and were eligible to submit proposals to purchase the property.

Adopted Equity Vision to improve student outcomes.

Restructured the District’ s Mental Health program to improve delivering wellness servicesto students.
Revised District school boundaries for Mills High School and Burlingame High School to ensure each
school had future enrollment capacity.

Implemented Fund 08 - Student Activities Fund to comply with GASB 84.

Expanded Technology support to acquire and support student learning using hot spots.

Implemented a distant learning platform expeditiousy and developed detailed protocols to implement
when permitted under amended “ Shelter in Place” orders.

Generated design drawingsfor Capital Facility Projectsand submitted design drawingsto Division of the
State Architect (DSA) for review. Capital Facility Projects are being constructed or completed.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

o Bond Measures

§ Measure M
Burlingame High School new pool

§ MeasureO
Technology replenishment
New Peninsula High School
Digtrict Office installation of solar panelsin parking lot

§ MeasurelL

- Campus safety - video surveillance system

Mills High School artificial stadium field
Capuchino High School artificial stadium field
Mills High School Athletic complex
Capuchino High School Athletic complex

§ Other Capital Projects
Aragon High School Elevator Canopy
Aragon High School Sealant Replacement
Burlingame High School new press box
Burlingame High School artificial turf replacement on the practice field
Burlingame High School locker augmentation
Hillsdale High School locker addition
San Mateo High School new gym roof

0 Reflnanced outstanding bonds twice in 2019:

§ InAugust 2019, the Didgtrict refinanced M easure M and M easure O bonds, saving property owners
over $6.7 million (9.6% present value savings).

§ InNovember 2019, the District refinanced additional M easure M bonds, saving property owners
over $2.2 million (5.3% present value savings).

0 Safety team investigated options to ensure our campuses were safeguarded. The team brought forth a
video surveillance camera proposal to the Board of Trustees for consideration and the proposal was
approved.

0 A cdebration with the City of Burlingame and the San Mateo Union High School District for the
reopening of the Burlingame High School pooal.

0 Board of Trustees approved placing a General Obligation Bond measure on the March ballot for $385
million under Proposition 39 to addresstechnol ogy, safety, academic and sustainability needs. Thebond
measure successfully passed dueto the proven track record of careful stewardship of the District’ sassets.

Bond proceeds of $96.3 million wasissued at an interest rate of 2.31%. The District was ableto lock in
the exceptionally low interest rates by securing arating of ‘Aaa’ from Moody’ s Investors Service. The
‘Aaa’ rating is the highest possible rating from Moody’s. This outstanding rating was a result of the
District’ sconservativefiscal policiesand practices, large tax base, strong resident socioeconomics, and
healthy finances. The District’ sstrong rating distingui shed the bonds from other municipal bondsin the
marketplace and helped secure significant investor demand.

After Measure L passed, the District issued Requests for Proposal for legal services, construction
management services, architectural services, Inspector of Record services, testing services, geotechnical
services, CEQA services and consultants and firms were selected.

Three Measure L projects are underway.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o

O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOo

Staff conducted a detailed analysis of Specia Education to identify new trends, program needs,
oversight, system implementation, staffing modifications and training to improve the program.
The 2018-19 District audit was positive.
The 2018-19 received a stellar bond performance audit.
The District refinanced portions of Measure M and Measure O, saving taxpayers an aggregate $8.9
million.
The District passed a $385 million general obligation bond initiative for capital projects focused on
safety, academic, technology and sustainability.
The District issued $13.4 million in tax and revenue anticipation notes (“TRANS’) for cash flow
purposes. The TRANSsreceived avery low borrowing rate of 0.2% and will be repaid on June 30, 2020.
Secured Property tax revenue increased by 7.2% from the prior year.
The Didtrict received a Strong Workforce grant of $489,647.
The District received $1.1 million from parent donations.
$1.3 million of deferred revenue from grants was appropriated from the prior year.
The cost of a 1% salary increase was $1.2 million
All bargaining units negotiated salary schedule increases of 4.44%.
CdaPERS retirement rate increased by 1.66% from the prior year.
STRS retirement rate increased by 0.82% from the prior year.
5.6 Certificated FTE's were added to the budget from 2018-19.
8.2 Classified FTE's were added to the budget from 2018-19.
Theincreaseinlocal state revenues and corresponding offset in benefit costs was dueto the effects of a
change implemented in 2018-19 to financial reporting requirements for pensions. Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) introduced new requirements for recognition of employer costs
and obligations for pensions (STRS & PERS On-Behalf). If the benefits earned by the pension plan
exceed the resources accumulated, then districts must report their proportionate share of the liability.
Both STRS and CalPERS accrued the contributions and districts are to recognize the impact in their
financial statements.
Several material transactions occurred between the time the 2019-20 Estimated A ctual swere presented
to the Board of Trustees as part of the 2020-21 Adopted Budget and the 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals.
§ Revenuesdecreased by ($632,010) due to deferring unspent restricted local grants.
§ Covid-19 State and County “ Shelter in Place” orders were enacted in March 2020. This caused
significant increases in expenses such as utilities, substitute employees, supplies and equipment.
§ Total expendltures decreased by ($2,660,411)
STRS Expense increased by $1,842,325 as aresult of GASB 68
Book and Supplies decreased by ($2,271,285)
Services and Other Operating Expenses decreased by ($1,228,019)
The decrease in Other Operating Expenses was due to changes in the Special Education
budget. At First Interim, Special Education requested an additional $3.4 million for
NPS/NPA contract expense. When the financial statements were closed, $1.7 million
remained unspent from the NPA/NPS contract budget. Thefinal invoice from the SMCOE
for Mental Health services was $642K greater than the budget. The net result of these two
transactionsis an increase in the ending balance for Specia Education of $1.1 million.
Theending balanceis composed of a13.4% net Basic Aid Reserve $21,610,106, excluding
Revolving Cash $20,000, carry over $1,029,166, stores $44,276 and prepaid expenses
$1,348,556.
Total salary and benefits for the General Fund represented 81% of total expenditures.

9



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NET POSITION

The District’s combined net position, as of June 30, 2020, was ($121,499,986) reflecting adecrease of 16.9%.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets:

Current Assets

Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:

Current Liabiliites

Long-term Liabilites
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 Change Percentage %
$ 169347535 $ 268365031 $  99,017,49% 58.5%
519,815,057 507,176,243 (12,638,814) -2.4%
689,162,592 775541,274 86,378,682 12.5%
79,942,338 104,124,633 (24,182,295) -30.2%
17,379,835 45,343,202 27,963,367 160.9%
788,317,150 878,159,056 89,841,906 11.4%
805,696,985 923,502,258 117,805,273 14.6%
66,958,183 77,663,635 10,705,452 16.0%
(25,041,761) (53,191,449) (28,149,688) 112.4%
41,606,737 52,905,900 11,299,163 27.2%
(120,115,214) (121,214,437) (1,099,223) -0.9%
$ (103550238) $ (121499986) $ (17,949,748) -17.3%

10



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

The District’ s total revenues increased $4,499,939, 1.9%, to $237,427,225. The total cost of all programs and
servicesincreased 11.6% to $255,376,973. The District’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and

caring for students (57.5%).

Condensed Statement of Activities

2019 2020 Change Percentage %
Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 903539 $ 1350861 $ 447322 49.5%
Operating Grants & Contributions 29,538,019 27,366,286 (2,171,733) -7.4%
Capital Grants & Contributions 67 - (67) -100.0%
Federal & State Aid, not restricted
for specific purposes 6,150,961 4221553 (1,929,408) -31.4%
Taxes and Subventions 185,940,930 196,980,479 11,039,549 5.9%
Interest & Investment Earnings 3,308,167 2,881,447 (426,720) -12.9%
Other General Revenues 7,085,603 4,626,599 (2,459,004) -34.7%
Total Revenues 232,927,286 237,427,225 4,499,939 1.9%
Expenses:
Instruction 86,760,978 99,537,263 12,776,285 14.7%
Instruction Related Services 21,563,479 23,336,990 1773511 8.2%
Pupil Services 20,815,028 23,640,508 2,825480 13.6%
General Administration 7,002,410 8,684,486 1,682,076 24.0%
Plant Services 21,988,186 24,544,418 2,556,232 11.6%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 30,084,467 33318514 3,234,047 10.7%
Depreciation (unallocated) 28,736,946 29,751,115 1,014,169 3.5%
Other Expenses 11,906,162 12,563,679 657,517 5.5%
Tota Expenses 228,857,656 255,376,973 26,519,317 11.6%
Change in Net Position $ 4069630 $ (179497480 $ 22019378 541.1%

11



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Total long-term liabilitiesincreased by $111,931,194 (14.20%).

Percent

2019 2020 Change Change
Bonds Payable $ 516,484,382 611,376,274 $ 94,891,892 18.37%
Accreted | nterest 103,535,623 114,248,586 10,712,963 10.35%
Capital Leases 320,635 246,348 (74,287) 100.00%
Net OPEB Liability 2,992,695 2,344,030 (648,665) -21.67%
Net Pension Liability 164,436,717 171,388,016 6,951,299 4.23%
Accumulated Vacation 547,098 645,090 97,992 17.91%
Total $ 788,317,150 900,248,344 $ 111,931,194 14.20%

The notesto the financial statementsare anintegral part of the financial presentation and contain more detailed
information as to interest, principal, retirement amounts, and future debt retirement dates.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased by $12,638,813 (2.43%) dueto current year depreciation growing at

a higher rate than acquisitions and improvements.

Land
Work-in-Progress
Buildings
Improvement of Sites
Equipment

Subtotals

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets, net

2019 2020

$ 369338 $ 3,693,384
10,897,277 24,802,658
224,580,715 224,580,715
577,343,429 579,996,227
9,833,822 10,387,944
826,348,627 843,460,928
(306,533,570) (336,284,684)

$ 519815057 $ 507,176,244
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

GENERAL FUND

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

TheDistrict’ sbudget is prepared in accordance with Californialaw and isbased on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Over the course of the year, the District revisesits budget based on updated financial information.
Theorigina budget, approved at the end of Junefor July 1, isbased on May revised figures and updated 45 days
after the State approvesitsfinal budget. In addition, the District revisesitsbudget at First and Second Interim and
any other time there are significant changes.

The District incurred unanticipated expenditures in excess of appropriations for employee benefits and capital
outlay of the general fund. The excess expendituresfor employee benefits are due to the recognition of the state
on-behalf payments for STRS, which are not included in the adopted budget.

Other than the aforementioned instances, the District did not incur unanticipated expenditures in excess of
appropriations in expenditure classifications for which the budget was not revised.

Governmental Activities

The following chart provides a breakdown of the $179.6 million of General Fund revenues by category:

Onher Local Other Sources
Revenue 024
4%
Othier Stale

Revenue
6%

Federal Revenue
1%

LCEFE Bowrces
EDog

13



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The following chart provides a breakdown of the $179.9 million of General Fund expenditures by object:

. ] Capital Onrtlay Other Outgo Transfers Onrt
Services and Other P it ' 304 g 29

L11%a

_ Certificated
Books and Supplies Salaries
3% 399

Employee Benefiis
25%

Classified Salaries
17%

Instruction and instruction-related services account for 53% of total expenditures by function. Overall, salary
and benefits made up 80.9% of the total expendituresin the General Fund for 2019-20.

ECONOMIC FACTORSAND THE FY 2019-20 BUDGET

The LCFF wasimplemented to simplify funding for local educational agencies. The old funding model provided
aper pupil alocation which was multiplied by the number of aschool district’ saveragedaily attendance (ADA).
Basic Aid school districts also received restricted monies for 50 different programs.

Under the L CFF and itsrevised models, revenue limits and most state categorical programswereeliminated. The
L CFF creates funding targets based on student characteristics and provides greater flexibility to use these funds
to improve student outcomes. For school districts and charter schools, the L CFF funding targets consist of grade
span specific base grants plus supplemental and concentration grants that are calculated based on student
demographic factors.

Basic aid digtricts, like the District, receive more per—pupil funding than needed to meet their L CFF targets and
their ERT. Because they lost funding as numerous categorical funds were rolled into the LCFF, they will
continue to receive the same amount of state aid they received in 2012-13. The District is $61.3 million into
Basic Aid.

The District’s LCAP and the budget are aligned to the eight state priorities: Basic Services, Implementation of

State Standards, Course Access, Pupil Achievement, Other Pupil Outcomes, Parent Involvement, Pupil
Engagement, and Student Climate.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Proposition 30 was extended by the electorate in the November 2016 ballot measure. This provides continued
support to public education.

Basic aid districts have expenditure budgets that are built on local tax revenues. There is no safety net at al on
basic aid revenues until they decline to the level of the revenue limit and the district ceases to be basic aid.
Declinesin revenue per student are quite common in basic aid districts; they happen every year in either small
increments or large drops. Basic aid districts therefore must create their own safety net and must do it by
maintaining higher-than-average reserves.

To safeguard the District against fluctuations, the Board of Trustees adopted a prudent Basic Aid contingency
reserve equa to 12%.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Thisfinancial report isdesigned to provide our community, property taxpayers, parents, investors, and creditors
with ageneral overview of the District’ sfinances and to demonstrate the District’ saccountability and safe guards
of the money it receives. If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial information,
contact Elizabeth McManus, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services, 650 Delaware Ave. San Mateo, CA
94401.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 260,362,383
Receivables 6,609,816
Prepaid expenses 1,348,556
Inventories 44,276
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 507,176,243
Total Assets 775541274
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding of bonds 17,152,328
Deferred discount on bonds 902,819
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions (note 6) 86,004,085
Deferred outflows on OPEB (note 7) 65401
Total deferred outflows 104,124,633
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 21,854,892
Unearned revenue 1,399,022

Long-term lighilities:
Due within one year 22,089,288
Due in more than one year 878,159,056
Total Liahilities 923,502,258

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred bond premium revenue 41,623,114
Deferred inflows on pensions (note 6) 35,266,169
Deferred inflows on OPEB (note 7) 774,352
Total deferred inflows 77,663,635
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets (53,191,449)
Restricted 52,905,900
Unrestricted (121,214,437)
Total Net Position $ (121,499,986)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net (Expense)
Revenues and

Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Grantsand  Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities
Instruction $ 99537263 $ 27414 3 12191134  $ $ (87,318,715)
Instruction - related services:
Instructional supervision 6,675,335 1437 1,117,995 (5,555,903)
Instructional library, media and
technology 5,853,240 1,905 241,153 (5,610,182)
School site administration 10,808,415 10,734 2,318,155 (8/479,526)
Pupil Services:
Home-to-school transportation 3,322,234 3556 138234 (3,180,444)
Food services 2,239,583 659,614 978,283 (601,686)
All other pupil services 18,078,691 3,340 195,922 (17,879,429)
General administration 8,684,486 25,259 175,308 (8,483,919)
Plant services 24544418 2683 406,054 (24,135,681)
Ancillary services 5,599,052 11,242 306415 (5,281,395)
Community services 72,763 - - (72,763)
Enterprise activities 1,609,163 - - (1,609,163)
Interest on long-term debt 33,318,514 - - (33,318,514)
Other outgo 5,282,701 603,677 9,297,633 4,618,609
Depreciation (unallocated) 29,751,115 - - (29,751,115)
Total governmental activities $ 255376973 $ 1350861 $ 27366286 $ (226,659,826)
General Revenues
Taxes and subventions:
Taxes levied for general purposes 157,572,857
Taxes levied for debt service 34,765,422
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 4,642,200
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 4221553
Interest and investment earnings 2,881,447
Interagency revenues 381,978
Miscellaneous 4,244,621
Total general revenues 208,710,078
Change in net position (17,949,748)
Net Position - July 1, 2019 (103,550,238)
Net Position - June 30, 2020 $ (121,499,986)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements. 17



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020

Bond Interest All
General Building And Redemption Non-M gjor
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20887468 $ 165503516 $ 40217261 $ 24754138 $ 260,362,383
Accounts receivable 4,635,202 1,038,801 130,031 805,782 6,609,816
Stores 44,276 - - - 44276
Prepaid expenditures 1,348,556 - - - 1,348,556
Due from other funds 97,862 31,822 - 1,713 131,397
Total assets $ 36013364 $ 166574139 $ 40347292 $ 25561633 $ 268496428
LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 5054106 $ 7020723 % - $ 305476 $ 12,380,305
Unearned revenue 1,301,433 - - 97,589 1,399,022
Due to other funds 1,713 17,568 - 112,116 131,397
Total Liabilities 6,357,252 7,038,291 - 515,181 13,910,724
Fund balances
Nonspendable 1412832 - - - 1412832
Restricted 179,583 9,022,314 40,347,292 3,356,711 52,905,900
Committed 23,328,662 150,513,534 - 21,689,741 195,531,937
Unassigned 4,735,035 - - - 4,735,035
Total Fund Balance 29,656,112 159,535,848 40,347,292 25,046,452 254,585,704

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 36013364 $ 166574139 $ 40347292 $ 25561633 $ 268496428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements. 18



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSBALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 254,585,704

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds
because:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the
statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and

accumulated depreciation.
Capital assets at historical cost: $ 843,460,928
Accumulated depreciation: 336,284,685
Net: 507,176,243

Unamortized costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs and premiums are
recognized in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements,
debt issue costs and premiums are amortized over the life of the debt.
Unamortized debt issue costs and premiums included in deferred inflows and
outflows on the statement of net position are:

Unamortized portion of bond premiums (41,623,114)
Unamortized portion of loss on refunding of bonds 17,152,328
Unamortized portion of bond discount 902,819

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-
term debt is not recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. 1nthe
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is
incurred. The additional ligbility for unmatured interest owing at the end of the
period was: (9,474,587)

Long-term lighilities: 1n governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In
the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are
reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

General Obligation Bonds Payable $ (611,376,274)
Net OPEB liability (2,344,030)
Accreted Interest on General Obligation Bonds Payable (114,248,586)
Compensated absences payable (645,090)
Capital leases payable (246,348)
Net Pension Liability 171,388,016
(900,248,344)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions and other

postemployment benefits (OPEB): In governmental funds, deferred outflows and

inflows of resources relating to pensions and OPEB are not reported because they

are applicable to future periods. |n the statement of net position, deferred outflows

and inflows of resources relating to pension and OPEB are reported.

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 86,004,085
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (35,266,169)
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 65,401
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (774,352

Total net position, governmental activities: $ (121,499,986)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Bond Interest All
Genera Building And Redemption Non-M ajor
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 159888558 $ - $ - $ - $ 159888558
Federal revenue 2,422,949 - 2,144,635 1,400574 5,968,158
Other state revenues 10,357,615 - 109,750 5,138,312 15,605,677
Other local revenues 6,942,619 6,788,496 39,674,209 2,559,517 55,964,841
Total revenues 179,611,741 6,788,496 41,928,594 9,098,403 237,427,234
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 69,398,034 - - 2,556,858 71,954,892
Classified salaries 30,683,160 15,386 - 2,370,346 33,068,892
Employee benefits 45,534,258 1,762 - 2115711 47,651,731
Books and supplies 5,745,782 99,436 - 762,898 6,608,116
Services and other operating expenditures 19,353,820 4,148,165 - 820,362 24,322 347
Capital outlay 554,121 16,476,904 - - 17,031,025
Other outgo 4,400,647 - - 80,193 4,489,840
Debt service, principle - - 15,872,463 - 15,872,463
Debt service, interest - - 19,607,859 - 19,607,859
Total expenditures 175,678,822 20,741,653 35,480,322 8,706,368 240,607,165
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3932919 (13953,157) 6,448,272 392,035 (3,179,931)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - 2,921,906 - 1,333,355 4,255,261
Operating transfers out (4,255,261) - - - (4,255,261)
Other sources 21,506 136,605,000 57,175,000 - 193,801,506
Other uses - (40,355,000) (57,175,000) - (97,530,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,233,755) 99,171,906 - 1,333,355 96,271,506
Net change in fund balances (300,836) 85,218,749 6,448,272 1,725,390 93,091,575
Fund balances, July 1, 2019 29,956,948 74,317,099 33,899,020 23,321,062 161,494,129
Fund balances, June 30, 2020 $ 20656112 $ 159535848 $ 40347292 $ 25046452 $ 254,585,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSSTATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 93091575

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlay: 1n governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the
period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between capital
outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay: $ 17,112,301
Depreciation expense: (29,751,115)
(12,638,814)

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In
the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as reductions of
liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were: 64,542,395

Debt proceeds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing
Sources. In the government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to
liabilities. Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from were: (153,425,000)

Accreted interest: In governmental funds, accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds and bond
anticipation notes is not recorded as an expenditure from current resources. In the government-wide
statement of activities, however, this is recorded as interest expense for the period. Accreted interest
incurred exceeded amounts paid during the year by: (10,712,963)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is
recognized in the period that it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less
matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period was: 51,842

Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the

amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured

by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated (97,992)
absences earned was:

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs are

recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are

recognized on the accrual basis. The difference between OPEB costs and actual employer 10,306
contributions was:

Pensions: In government funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made
in the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the
difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was: (4,302,817)

Amortization of debt issue premium or discount or deferred gain or loss from debt refunding: In
governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium or discount is
recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is incurred. In
the government-wide statements, the premium or discount, plus any deferred gain or loss from debt
refunding, is amortized as interest over the life of the debt. Amortization of premium or discount, or
deferred gain or loss from debt refunding, for the period is:

Premium on new debt issue in current year $ (10,763,309)
Deferred loss on debt refunding in current year 14,164,757
Discount on debt issue in current year 266,480
Amortization of deferred inflows relating to loss from debt refunding (2,217,051)
Amortization of deferred outflows relating to debt issue discount (36,208)
Amortization of deferred outflows relating to debt issue premium 4,117,051
5,531,720
Total change in net position - governmental activities $ (17,949,748)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Due to student groups
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.

Student Body
Funds

$ 1,292,074
12,979

$ 1,305,053
$ 1,300,027
5,026

$ 1,305,053
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

San Mateo Union High School District (the"District") accountsfor itsfinancial transactionsin accordance
with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California School Accounting
Manual. The accounting policiesof the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Americaas prescribed by the Governmenta Accounting StandardsBoard. Thefollowingis
asummary of the more significant policies:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Thereporting entity iscomprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations
that areincluded to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the
District consists of al funds, departments, boards, and agenciesthat are not legally separate from the
District. For San Mateo Union High School District, thisincludes general operations, food service, and
student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organi zationsthat are fiscally dependent on the District, in that the
District approves their budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition,
component units are other legally separate organizations for which the District is not financialy
accountable but the nature and significance of the organization's relationship with the District is such
that exclusion would cause the District's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

For financia reporting purposes, the component unit has afinancial and operational relationship which
meetsthe reporting entity definition criteriaof the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and thusisincluded in the financial statements of
the District. The component unit, although a legally separate entity, is reported in the financial
statements using the blended presentation method asif it were part of the District's operations because
the governing board of the component unit is essentially the same asthe governing board of the District
and becauseits purposeisto finance the construction of facilitiesto be used for the direct benefit of the
District.

The San Mateo Union High School District Building Corporation (the Corporation) financial activity is
presented in thefinancial statementsasthe Capital Projectsfor Blended Component Units Fund and the
Debt Servicefor Blended Component Units Fund. Certificates of participation and other debt issued by
the Corporation are included as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.
Individually prepared financia statements are not prepared for the Corporation.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

B. BASISOF PRESENTATION

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net paosition and the statement of activities display information about the District.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.

The government-wide statement of net position presentsinformation on all of the District’ s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two presented as net position. Net positionisreported asone
of three categories. net investment in capital assets; restricted; or unrestricted. Restricted net position
are further classified as either net position restricted by enabling legislation or net position that is
otherwise restricted.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are,
therefore, clearly identifiableto aparticular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses
to functionsin the statement of activities. Program revenuesinclude charges paid by the recipients of
goodsor servicesoffered by aprogram, aswell as grantsand contributionsthat are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as
program revenues, are presented as genera revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenseswith program revenuesidentifiesthe extent to which each governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

TheDistrict reportsall direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expensesare
those that are clearly identifiable with afunction. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by
function and isincluded in thedirect expensefunction. Interest onlong-term liabilitiesisconsidered an
indirect expense and is reported separately in the Statement of Activities.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of governmental
fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major
governmental fund is presented in a separate column, and all non-major funds are aggregated into one
column. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUSAND BASISOF ACCOUNTING

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financia statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when aliability isincurred, regardless of thetiming of related cash flows. Property taxesare
recoghized asrevenuesin the year for which they arelevied. Grantsand similar items are recognized
asrevenue as soon as al eligibility requirements are met. Expenses are recorded when liabilities are
incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements (i.e., balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changesin fund balances) are reported using the current financial resources measurement focusand
themodified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue resulting from exchangetransactions, in which each
party givesand receives essentially equal value, isrecorded under the accrual basiswhen the exchange
takesplace. Onamodified accrual basis, revenueisrecorded in the fiscal year in which the resources
are measurable and become available. “Available” means the resources will be collected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current fiscal year. For the District, “available’” means collectible within the current period or
within 60 days after year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal valuein
return, include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenuefrom property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and
entitlementsis recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirementsincludetiming requirements, which specify the year when theresourcesareto
be used, or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District
must providelocal resourcesto beused for aspecified purpose; and expenditure requirements, inwhich
the resources are provided to the District on areimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrua accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

D. FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are alocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

D. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The District funds are as follows:

Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund isthe general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for al financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The District also maintains a
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. The Special Reserve Fund for Other
Than Capital Outlay Projectsisnot substantially composed of restricted or committed revenue sources,
and does not meet the definition of a specia revenue fund under GASB 54, therefore, activity in the
fund is being reported within the General Fund.

The Building Fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds
(Education Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the
bonds were issued.

The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for a district
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262).

Non-Major Governmental Funds:

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other
than for major capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The
District maintains the following special revenue funds:

The Adult Education Fund isused to account separately for Federal, State, and local revenues
to operate adult education programs and isto be used only for expenditures for the operation of
adult education programs.

The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for Federal, State, and local resources to
operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093) and is used only for
those expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the
District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

TheDeferred Maintenance Fund isused to account separately for State apportionmentsand the
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-
17587) and for items of maintenance approved by the State Allocation Board.

The Foundation Special Revenue fund is used to account for resources received from local
donations.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

D. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital
assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).

The Capital Facilities Fund isused primarily to account separately for monies received from
fees levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development
(Education Code sections 17620-17626). Expenditures are restricted to the purposes specifiedin
Government Code sections 65970-65981 or to the items specified in agreements with the
developer (Government Code Section 66006).

The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects Fund isused to account for funds set
aside for Board designated construction projects.

The Foundation Permanent Fund is used to account for permanently restricted funds.

Fiduciary Fundsare used to account for assets held in trustee or agent capacity for othersthat cannot
be used to support thedistrict’ sown programs. Thefiduciary fund category includes Trust and agency
funds. The District maintains the following fiduciary fund:

Agency Fundsare custodial in nature (assets equd liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. The Didtrict's agency funds include Associate Student Body that
accountsfor student body activities (ASB) and Foundation Fund. The District usesagency funds
for student body fundsto account for the raising and expending of money to promote the genera
welfare, morale and educational experience of the student body. These funds' activities are
reported in aseparate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changesin fiduciary net
assets. These funds are custodia in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. Accordingly, the District presents only a statement of fiduciary net assets and does
not present astatement of changesin fiduciary net assets. Fiduciary fundsarenot reflected inthe
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not availableto
support the District’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-widefinancia
statements.
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E. BUDGETSAND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted on abasis consistent with generally accepted accounting principlesfor all
governmenta funds. By state law, the District's governing board must adopt a final budget no later
than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. TheDistrict's
governing board satisfied these requirements.

During the year, budget revisions by the Didtrict's governing board and district superintendent give
consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures. Thefinal revised budgetsare presentedin the
financial statements.

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for all
budgeted funds. The District employsbudget control by major object and by individual appropriation
accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object account. Thebudgetsare
revised during the year by the District’ sBoard of Education and District Superintendent to providefor
unanticipated revenues and expenditures.

F. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting isused in al budgeted fundsto reserve portions of applicable appropriations
for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts,
and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments
arepaid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

G. REVENUES—-EXCHANGE AND NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Revenueresulting from exchange transactions, in which each party givesand receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrua basis,
revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available meansthat the resourceswill be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liahilities of the current fiscal year. For the District,
avail able means expected to be received within 90 days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal valuein
return, include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes
is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from certain grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include time and purpose restrictions. On a modified accrual
basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable
and available at fiscal year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain grants, and other local sources.
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. UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned Revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the " measurable” and "available"
criteriafor recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria
are met, or when the District has alegal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenueis
removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue.
On the governmental fund financia statements, receivables that will not be collected within the
available period are also recorded as deferred revenue.

EXPENSESEXPENDITURES

On the accrua basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which therelated fund liability isincurred, if measurable, and typically paid within 90 days. Principal
and interest on long-term obligations, which have not matured, are recognized when paid in the
governmenta funds as expenditures. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are
not recognized in the governmental funds but are recognized in the entity-wide statements.

INVESTMENT VALUATION AND INCOME RECOGNITION

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all itscash in
the San Mateo County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the
county and investsthe cash. Thesepooled fundsare carried at cost, which approximates market value.
Interest earned is credited to each fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds
in the pooal.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

TheDistrict's cash and cash equival entsare considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash
equivalentsalso include cash with county treasury balancesfor purposesof the statement of cash flows.

INVESTMENTS

Investmentsheld at June 30, 2020, with original maturities greater than oneyear are stated at fair value.
Fair valueis estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be
reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.

. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of amounts due from the federal and state governmentsrel ated to federal and state
programs. The District has not established an allowance for doubtful accounts, due to the nature of
these accounts. However, management continually monitorsthe accountsfor collectability. The District
does not charge interest on past due accounts.
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. STORESINVENTORIES

Inventoriesin the General Fund consist mainly of consumable suppliesheld for future use. Inventories
arevalued at cost using thefirst-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventory items are recorded
as expenditures in the governmental type funds when used.

. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets arethose purchased or acquired with an original cost of $25,000 or more and are reported
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assetsarereported at fair market value as of
the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairsthat do not add to
the value of the assets or materially extend the asset’s lives are not capitalized, but are expenses as
incurred. Depreciation on all capital assetsiscomputed using the straight-line basis over thefollowing
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life in Years
Buildings and Improvements 20 - 50 years
Furniture and Equipment 2 - 15 years
Vehicles 7 years

INTERFUND BALANCES

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as"interfund receivables/payables’. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the statement of net position.

. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Theliability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide statements consists of unpaid,
accumulated annual vacation leave balances. Theliability hasbeen cal culated using the vesting method,
inwhich leave amountsfor both employeeswho currently are eligibleto receive termination payments
and other employeeswho are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon
termination are included.

. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities
that, onceincurred, are paid in atimely manner and in full from current financial resourcesarereported
as obligations of the governmental funds.

However, claimsand judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually
required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported asaliability in
the governmental fund financial statementsonly to the extent that they are due for payment during the
current year. Bonds, capital |eases, and other long-term obligations are recognized asliabilitiesin the
governmental fund financial statements when due.
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S. DEFERRED INFLOWSAND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that appliesto afuture period(s), and as such will not be recognized asan
outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. Thisseparate financial statement element, deferred inflowsof resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be
recoghized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

T. FUND BALANCE

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be
spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amountsthat are not expected to be converted to cash,
such asresourcesthat arenot in aspendableform (e.g. inventories and prepaids) or that arelegally
or contractually required to be maintained intact. The District has classified it revolving cash
account as being nonspendable asit isrequired to be maintained intact.

Redtricted: Thisclassification includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers
or by law. The District has classified federal and state categorical programs as being restricted
becausetheir useisrestricted by Statute. Debt serviceresourcesareto be used for future servicing
of the general obligation bonds and are restricted through debt covenants.

Committed: This classification includes amounts constrained to specific sources by the Board. For
this purpose, all commitments of funds shall be approved by a mgjority vote of the Board. The
constraints shall beimposed no later than the end of the reporting period of June 30, although the
actual amounts may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to theissuance of thefinancial
Statements.

Assigned: Thisclassification includesamountswhich the Board or itsdesigneeintendsto usefor a
specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent may be expressed by either the
Board, committees (such as budget or finance), or officias to which the Board has delegated
authority.

Unassigned: Thisclassification represents fund balance that hasnot been restricted, committed, or
assigned and may be utilized by the district for any purpose.

When multiple types of funds are available for an expenditure, the District shall first utilize funds

from the restricted fund bal ance as appropriate, then from committed fund balance, then from the
assigned fund balance, and lastly from the unassigned fund balance.
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U. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding bal ances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

V. RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Net position isreported asrestricted when there are limitationsimposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the Didtrict or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or lawsor regulations of other governments. Therestriction for unspent categorical program
revenues represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program expenditures. The
restrictions on specia revenuesand capita projectsrepresent the portion of net position for the special
revenue and capital projectsfunds. Therestriction for debt service represents the amount to beused for
the repayment of long-term liabilities. The District first appliesrestricted resourceswhen an expenseis
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

W. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the District, these revenues are primarily interfund insurance premiums.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or servicesthat are the primary
activity of the fund.

X. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Transfersbetween governmental activitiesin the government-widefinancial satementsarereportedin
the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expensesin the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goodsfrom onefund to another without
areguirement for repayment arereported asinterfund transfers. Interfund transfersare reported asother
financing sources/usesin governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expensesin proprietary
funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements.

Y. ESTIMATES

The preparation of thefinancia statementsin conformity with accounting principlesgenerally accepted
inthe United States of Americarequires management to makeestimatesand assumptionsthat affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Z. ELIMINATIONSAND RECLASSIFICATIONS

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities,
some amountsreported asinterfund activity and balancesin the funds were eliminated or reclassified.
Interfund receivables and payableswere eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and
liabilities within the governmental activities column.
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AA.

BB.

CC.

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resourcesrel ated
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the San Mateo Union
High School District’s California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) and California
State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) plans (Plans) and additionsto/deductionsfrom the Plans
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS and
CalSTRS, respectively. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payabl e in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
arereported at fair value.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITSOTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the District’s net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resourcesrelated to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about thefiduciary net
position of the District’ splan and additionsto/deductionsfrom the District Plan’ sfiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the District’s OPEB plan. For this
purpose, the District’ s plan recogni zes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and
participating interest earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one
year or less, which are reported at cost.

MINIMUM FUND BALANCE POLICY

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 54, the District adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the
Genera Fund in order to protect the District against revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures.

The Board of Trustees directs the maintenance of no lessthan a 12 percent Unrestricted General Fund
Reserve for Economic Uncertainty. The Unrestricted General Fund Reserve for Economic Uncertainty
will be composed of two elements:

§ Thefirst element will be composed of a 3% Unrestricted Reserve for Economic Uncertainty, and
will be categorized asbasic reserve and will align to the leve set by the State for the Unrestricted
Reserve for Economic Uncertainty.

§ The second element will be composed of a 9% Unrestricted Strategic Reserve for Economic
Uncertainty.

Thetotal 12 percent Unrestricted General Fund Reserve for Economic Uncertainty will be achieved
over aperiod of time by incrementally growing the unrestricted reserve. The Board intendsto adjust its
Unrestricted General Fund Reserve for Economic Uncertainty to align to alevel comparable to other
basic aid school districts. When an expenditureisincurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first.
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the District considers amountsto have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned
funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed unlessthe governing board hasprovided otherwiseinits
commitment or assignment actions.
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DD. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

The County is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property taxesfor all
jurisdictions including the schools and special districts within the County. The Board of Supervisors
levies property taxes as of September 1 on property values assessed on July 1. Secured property tax
payments are due in two equal installments. Thefirst is generally due November 1 and is delinquent
with penalties on December 10, and the second is generally due on February 1 and is delinquent with
penalties on April 10. Secured property taxes become alien on the property on January 1.

EE. DUAL DATING OF AUDIT REPORT
Subsequent to our issuance of our audit report dated November 23, 2020, we noted there was a
refunding bond issued in October 2019 as described in note 5. As aresult of recording the issuance,
there was ho changeto the fund balancein the Bond Interest and Redemption fund. Thenet position on
the Statement of Activities increased $461,762 as aresult of this adjustment.
2. CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Cash at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Activities Total
Cash in county treasury $ 260,184,774 $ 1,292,074 $ 261,476,848
Cash with fiscal agent 156,609 - 156,609
Cash in revolving fund 20,000 - 20,000
Cash on hand and in banks 1,000 - 1,000
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 260,362,383 $ 1,292,074 $ 261,654,457

Cash in Bank and Revolving Funds

Cash balances held in banks and revolving funds are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.

Cash in County Treasury

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of itscashinthe
San Mateo County Treasury. The County poolsand investsthe cash. These pooled fundsare carried at cost
which approximates fair value. Interest earned is deposited annually into participating funds. Any
investment losses are proportionately shared by all fundsin the pool. Because the District's deposits are
maintained in arecognized pooled investment fund under the care of athird party and the Ditrict's share of
the pool does not consist of specific, identifiableinvestment securitiesowned by the District, no disclosure
of the individual deposits and investments or related custodia credit risk classifications is required. In
accordance with applicable state laws, the San Mateo County Treasurer may invest in derivative securities
with the State of Caifornia. However, at June 30, 2020, the San Mateo County Treasurer has represented
that the Pooled Investment Fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk profiles.
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CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Thefair value of the District'sinvestment in the pool isreported in thefinancial statements at amounts that
are based upon the District's pro-rata share of thefair value provided by the County Treasurer for theentire
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The weighted average maturity of the pool is
1.75years. Thepool israted AA by Standard and Poor’s.

Investments, including derivativeinstrumentsthat are not hedging derivatives, aremeasured at fair valueon
arecurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s
fair value.

Interest Rate Risk

TheDistrict doesnot have aformal investment policy that limits cash and investment maturitiesasameans
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. At June 30, 2020, the
District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held.

Credit Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the
limitations of state law.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Didtrict does not place limits on the amount it may invest in anyone issuer. At June 30, 2020, the
District had no concentration of credit risk.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions are reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures. Reimbursements occur when onefund incursa cost, chargesthe appropriate benefiting fund,
and reduces itsrelated cost as areimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.

35



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Interfund Receivables/Payables

As of June 30, 2020, the interfund receivable and payable balances were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Major Fund
General Fund $ 97,862 $ 1,713
Building Fund 31,822 17,568
Non-major Funds
Adult Education Fund - 101
Cafeteria Fund 1,713 80,193
Deferred Maintenance Fund - 1,612
Foundation Permanent Fund - 2,500
Capita Facilities Fund - 27,710
Tota $ 131,397 $ 131,397
Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfersfrom fundsreceiving resourcesto fundsthrough which the
resources are to be expended. Interfund transfers for the 2019-2020 fiscal year are as follows:

Transfer from General Fund to the Cafeteria Fund

for direct support of student nutrition services $ 675,754
Transfer from General Fund to the Building Fund for Burlingame pool,

deferred maintenance and security cameras. 2,921,906
Transfer from General Fund to the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

to set aside funds for mental health program. 657,601

Total transfers $ 4,255,261
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is shown below:

Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Work in Progress

Depreciable assets:
Buildings
Improvement of Sites
Equipment

Totals, at cost

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings
Improvement of Sites
Equipment

Depreciable assets, net

Capital Assets, net

The entire amount of depreciation expense was unallocated in the Statement of Activities.

Balance Additions / Deletions / Balance

July 1, 2019 TransfersIn Transfers Out June 30, 2020
$ 3,693,334 $ - $ - $ 3,693,384
10,897,277 16,451,951 2,546,570 24,802,658
14,590,661 16,451,951 2,546,570 28,496,042
224,580,715 - - 224,580,715
577,343,429 2,652,798 - 579,996,227
9,833,822 554,122 - 10,387,944
811,757,966 3,206,920 - 814,964,886
826,348,627 19,658,871 2,546,570 843,460,928
(142,097,630) (2,461,036) - (144,558,666)
(159,553,434) (26,859,694) - (186,413,128)
(4,882,506) (430,385) - (5,312,891)
(306,533,570) (29,751,115) - (336,284,685)
505,224,396 (26,544,195) - 478,680,201

$ 519,815,057 $ (10,092,244) $ 2,546,570 $ 507,176,243
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Schedule of Changesin Long-Term Liabilities

The changes in the District’ s long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020 One Y ear
General Obligation Bonds
Principal amount $ 516,484,382 $ 193,780,000 $ 98,883,108 $ 611,376,274 $ 17,855330
Accreted interest 103,535,623 14,400,499 3,687,536 114,248,586 4,159,671
Capital Leases Payable 320,635 - 74,287 246,348 74,287
Net OPEB Liability 2,992,695 - 648,665 2,344,030 -
Net Pension Liability 164,436,717 6,951,299 - 171,388,016
Accumulated V acation 547,098 97,992 - 645,090 -
Subtotal 788,317,150 215,229,790 103,298,596 900,248,344 22,089,288
Unamortized General Obligation
Bond Premium 40,911,856 4,828,309 4,117,051 41,623,114
Unamortized Bond Discount (672,547) (273,083) (42,811) (902,819)
Unamortized Loss on Refunding (5,204,622 (14,931,449 (2,983,743 (17,152,328)
Total Long-Term Obligation $ 823351837 $ 204853567 $ 104,389,093 $ 923816311 $ 22,089,283

Genera Obligation Bonds

Measure D

An election was held on November 7, 2000, at which more than two-thirds of the votersin the District
authorized the issuance and sale of $137.5 million of genera obligation bonds. The bonds are general
obligations of the District, and the County is obligated to annually levy ad valorem taxes for the payment
of, the interest on, and the principal of the bonds. Bond proceeds were for the purpose of constructing a
number of projects within the District.

Measure M

An election was held on November 7, 2006, at which time more than fifty-five percent of the votersin the
District authorized the i ssuance and sale of $298 million of general obligation bonds. Thebondsaregeneral
obligations of the District, and the County is obligated to annually levy ad valorem taxes for the payment
of, the interest on, and the principal of the bonds. Bond proceeds were used to finance the costs of
renovating, acquiring, constructing, repairing and equipping of District buildings and other facilitiesand to
pay costs of issuance associated with the bonds.

A portion of thebonds, issued as Series 2010B, were designated "Build AmericaBonds' for purposesof the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the "Recovery Act"). Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the
District expects to receive a cash subsidy payment from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the
interest payable on the Series 2010B Bonds on or about each interest payment date. The cash payment does
not constitute afull faith and credit guarantee of the United States Government, but isrequired to be paid by
the Treasury under the Recovery Act. The Didtrict is obligated to deposit any cash subsidy payments it
receives into the debt service fund for the Bonds.

38



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES(CONTINUED)

Measure O

On November 2, 2010, an election was held of the registered voters of the District, at which morethan fifty
five percent of the votersvoting on the proposition approved theissuance and sale of $186 million principal
amount of General Obligation Bonds. The bonds are being issued to 1) prepay the District's 2007
Certificates of Participation, 2) to finance the costs of renovating, acquiring, constructing, repairing, and
equipping of District buildingsand other facilitiesand 3) to pay certain costsof issuance associated with the
bonds.

2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series A

On February 13, 2012, the District issued $10,835,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The Bonds
consist of serial bonds bearing fixed rates ranging from 2.0 to 4.0 percent with annual maturities from
September 2012 through September 2022. The net proceeds of $12,205,678 (after issuance costs of
$141,341 and origina issue premium of $1,512,020) were used to refund a portion of the District’s
outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2000, Series C.

The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has
been removed from the District's liabilities. Amounts paid to the refunded bond escrow agent in excess of
the outstanding debt at the time of payment are recorded as deferred charges on refunding on the statement
of net position and are amortized to interest expense over the life of the liability. Deferred amounts on the
refunding of $182,047 remain to be amortized. As of June 30, 2020, the entire amount has been repaid on
the defeased debt.

2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series B

On November 7, 2012, the District issued $38,940,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. Thebonds
consist of serial bonds bearing fixed rates ranging from 0.478 to 3.22 percent with annual maturitiesfrom
September 2013 through September 2024. The net proceeds of $38,615,677 (after issuance costs of
$188,033 and underwriter’s discount of $136,290) were used to refund a portion of the District’s
outstanding General Obligation Bonds, 2004 Refunding.

The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has
been removed from the District's liabilities. Amounts paid to the refunded bond escrow agent in excess of
the outstanding debt at the time of payment are recorded as deferred charges on refunding on the statement
of net assets and are amortized to interest expense over the life of the liability. No deferred amounts on
refunding remain to be amortized.
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

2014 Refunding General Obligation Bonds

On November 13, 2014, the District issued $50,190,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The
bonds bear fixed interest rates ranging between 2.0% and 5.0% with annual maturities from September 1,
2015 through September 1, 2032. The net proceeds of $60,583,437 (after premiums of $10,751,678 and
issuance costs of $358,241) were used to prepay a portion of the District’s outstanding Election of 2006
Genera Obligation Bonds, Series 2008 A.

The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has
been removed from the District'sliabilities. Amounts paid to the escrow agent in excess of the outstanding
debt at thetime of payment are recorded as deferred amounts on refunding on the statement of net position
and are amortized to interest expense over thelife of theliability. Deferred amounts on refunding asof June
30, 2020, of $31,151 remain to be amortized for this refunding.

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (2021 Crossover)

On March 24, 2016, the District issued $12,550,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The bonds
bear fixed interest rates ranging between 2.0% and 5.0% with annual maturities from September 1, 2022
through September 1, 2034. The net proceeds of $13,315,388 (after premiums of $946,493 and issuance
costs of $181,105) were used to prepay a portion of the District’s outstanding Election of 2006 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 A and Election of 2010 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 A.

The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has
been removed from the District'sliabilities. Amounts paid to the escrow agent in excess of the outstanding
debt at thetime of payment are recorded as deferred amounts on refunding on the statement of net position
and are amortized to interest expense over thelife of theliability. Deferred amounts on refunding asof June
30, 2020, of $316,526 remain to be amortized for this refunding.

Thetransaction resulted in an economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt serviceon the
old and the new bonds) of $362,210.

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

On August 23, 2016, the District issued $139,920,000 of Genera Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series B
($38,380,000), Series C ($58,530,000), Series D ($12,000,000) and SeriesE ($22,010,000). The bonds bear
fixedinterest ratesranging between 2.0% and 5.0% with annua maturitiesfrom September 1, 2017 through
September 1, 2041. Thenet proceeds of $152,482,533 (after premiumsof $22,303,307 and issuance costs of
$740,774) were used to prepay aportion of the District’ s outstanding Election of 2006 General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2013 A, Series 2010 and Series 2012 A and Election of 2010 General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2011 A and 2013 A.
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The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the related liability for the bonds has
been removed from the District'sliabilities. Amounts paid to the escrow agent in excess of the outstanding
debt at thetime of payment are recorded as deferred amounts on refunding on the statement of net position
and are amortized to interest expense over thelife of theliability. Deferred amounts on refunding asof June
30, 2020, of $802,505 remain to be amortized for this refunding.

2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

On December 12, 2017, the District issued $41,930,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. Thebonds
bear fixed interest rates ranging between 1.687% and 3.5% with annual maturitiesfrom September 1, 2018
through September 1, 2042. The net proceeds of $40,877,099 (after discount of $731,671 and issuance costs
of $321,230) were used to advance refund a portion of the District’ s outstanding Election of 2010 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2011A.

The net proceedswere used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securitiesweredeposited into an
irrevocabl e trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
Asaresult, therefunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the rel ated liability for the bondshasbeen
removed from the District'sliabilities. Amounts paid to the escrow agent in excess of the outstanding debt
a the time of payment are recorded as deferred amounts on refunding on the statement of net position and
areamortized to interest expense over thelife of theliability. Deferred amounts on refunding asof June 30,
2020, of $4,507,645 remain to be amortized for this refunding.

2019 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

On August 13, 2019, the District issued $57,175,000 of 2019 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The
bonds bear fixed interest ratesranging between 1.994% and 3.282% with annua maturitiesfrom September
1, 2019 through September 1, 2041. The net proceeds are being issued to (i) advance refund aportion of the
District’s outstanding Election of 2006 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A, (ii) advance refund the
District’ s outstanding Election of 2010 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A, and (iii) pay the costs of
issuing the Bonds.

2019B General Obligation Refunding Bonds

On October 9, 2019, the District issued $40,355,000 of 2019B General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The
bonds bear fixed interest ratesranging between 1.604% and 2.617% with annua maturitiesfrom September
1, 2019 through September 1, 2033. The net proceeds are being issued to (i) advance refund aportion of the
District’s outstanding 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the
Bonds.

MeasureL

On March 3, 2020, an election was held for Measure L of the registered voters of the Digtrict, at which
more than fifty-five percent of the votersvoting on the proposition approved the issuance and sal e of $385
million principal amount of General Obligation Bonds. The bonds are being issued to finance the costs of
renovating, acquiring, constructing, repairing and equipping of District buildings and other facilitiesand to
pay certain costs of issuance associated with the bonds.

Measure L issued 2020 series A bonds on June 10, 2020 in the amount of $96,250,000.
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A summary of outstanding general obligation bondsissued is presented below:

|ssue M aturity Interest Original Balance, Advance Balance,
Series Date Date Rate |ssue July 1, 2019 Additions Deductions Refunding June 30, 2020
M easure D:
2000B 712412002 2027 20%-569% $ 499%6,152 $ 19198120 $ - $ 2316611 $ - $ 16,831,509
2000C 3/4/2004 2029 2.0% - 5.32% 27,503,798 12,658,798 - - - 12,658,798
Measure M:
2008A 6/18/2008 2032 4.0% - 5.0% 62,700,000 - - - - -
2010A 2/17/2010 2018 5.0% - 5.5% 4,890,000 - - - - -
2010B 2/17/2010 2034 4.6% - 6.15% 65,110,000 2,430,000 - 1,100,000 - 1,330,000
2011A 7/6/2011 2051 2.0% - 7.0% 34,999,364 24713922 - - - 24713922
2011A-1 7/14/2011 2027 5.01% 25,000,000 17,360,000 - 1,530,000 - 15,830,000
2012A 2/13/2012 2039 4.0% - 12.0% 10,895,752 187,402 - 20,708 - 166,694
2013A  12/20/2013 2031 4.0% - 5.0% 94,400,576 54,076,562 - 3,105,000 30,655,000 20,316,562
M easure O:
2011A 6/15/2011 2041 2.23% - 6.7% 89,999,989 51,063,933 - 235144 - 50,828,789
2013A  12/20/2013 2041 4.0% - 5.0% 39,999,941 17,940,645 - - 17,940,645 -
2015A 5/19/2015 2034 2.0% - 5.0% 56,000,000 53,370,000 - 115,000 - 53,255,000
Measure L:
2020A 6/10/2020 2047 1.875%-4.0% 96,250,000 96,250,000 - - 96,250,000
Refunding I ssues:
2012A 2/13/2012 2022 2.0% - 4.0% 10,835,000 6,300,000.00 - 1,350,000 - 4,950,000
2012B 11/7/2012 2024 0.478% - 3.22% 38,940,000 23,160,000 - 3,625,000 - 19,535,000
2014 11/13/2014 2032 2.0% - 5.0% 50,190,000 49,545,000 - 1,315,000 34,420,000 13,810,000
2016 3/24/2016 2035 2.0% - 5.0% 12,550,000 12,550,000 - - - 12,550,000
2017B 9/1/2016 2042 2.0% - 4.0% 38,380,000 37,980,000 - 110,000 - 37,870,000
2017C 9/1/2016 2034 4.0% - 5.0% 58,530,000 58,530,000 - - - 58,530,000
2017D 9/1/2016 2039 2.0% - 4.0% 12,000,000 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
2017E 9/1/2016 2041 2.0% - 4.0% 22,010,000 22,010,000 - - - 22,010,000
2017F 11/14/2017 2042 2.0% - 4.0% 41,930,000 41,410,000 - - - 41,410,000
2019 7/17/2019 2041 1.994%-3.282% 57,175,000 - 57,175,000 1,050,000 - 56,125,000
20198 10/9/2019 2033 1.604%-2.617% 40,355,000 - 40,355,000 - - 40,355,000
$ 1040640572 $ 516484382 $193780000 $15872463 $ 83015645 $ 611376274
Accreted Balance, Advance Balance,
Interest July 1, 2019 Additions Deductions Refunding June 30, 2020
Measure M:
2000B $ 20585716 $ 2659059 $ 3523388 % - $ 28,721,387
2000C 15,136,529 1,497,057 - - 16,633,586
2011A 18,157,601 3,163,648 - - 21,321,249
2012A 1,634,871 287,226 4,292 - 1,917,805
2013A 920,962 199,493 - - 1,120,455
Measure O:
2011A 36,017,442 6,125,490 159,856 - 41,983,076
2013A 2,082,502 468,526 - - 2,551,028
$ 103535623 $ 14400499 $ 3687536 $ - $ 114,248586
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Theannual reguirementsto amortize all general obligation bonds payabl e outstanding as of June 30, 2020,

are asfollows:

Y ear Ended
June 30, Principal I nterest Total
2021 $ 17855330 $ 29,761,355 47,616,685
2022 25,144,932 28,028,187 53,173,119
2023 20,343,775 27,544,938 56,888,713
2024 33,336,470 28,360,631 61,697,101
2025 22,467,346 30,021,206 52,488,552
2025-2030 134,596,080 133,169,050 267,765,130
2031-2035 151,658,312 114,385,345 266,043,657
2036-2040 72,771,658 155,009,096 227,780,754
2041-2045 87,870,343 99,718,645 187,583,988
2046-2050 29,824,381 63,724,167 93,548,548
2051-2052 6,507,647 27,915,985 34,423,632
Total $ 611,376,274 $ 737,638,605 $ 1,349,014,879

The annual requirements to amortize the capital lease payable as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Y ear Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 78,071 $ 10,869 $ 88,940
2022 82,049 6,891 88,940
2023 86,228 2,711 88,940
Total $ 246,348 $ 20,472 $ 266,820

43



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers Retirement
System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS).

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement
System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit
pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan providesretirement and disability benefits, annual cost-
of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annua financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Copiesof the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from
the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The
plan provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions
are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers Retirement Law.
STRS issues a separate comprehensive annua financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. Copiesof the STRS annual financial report may be obtained fromthe
STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:

CalPERS CalSTRS

Prior to On or after Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013  January 1, 2013  January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule S5yearsservice 5 years service 5yearsservice 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for life  monthly for life  monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 7% 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rates 19.721% 19.721% 17.10% 17.10%
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Contributions

CalPERS

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plans are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaPERS. Theactuarialy determined rateisthe
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employeesduring the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. San Mateo Union High School District is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees.

STRS

Required member, employer and state contribution ratesare set by the California L egid ature and Governor
and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed asalevel percentage of payroll
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plan
were:

CalPERS STRS Total
Contributions - employer $ 6,089,060 $ 20,26589%6 $ 26,354,956
On behalf contributions - state - 8,368,533 8,368,533
Total $ 6,089,060 $ 28,634,429 $ 34,723,489

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2020, San Mateo Union High School District reported net pension liabilities for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plans' of:

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

CaPERS $ 61,422,330
STRS 109,965,686
Total Net Pension Liability $ 171,388,016
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San Mateo Union High School District’ snet pension liability for the Plan is measured asthe proportionate
share of thenet pension liability. The net pension liability of the Planis measured as of June 30, 2019, and
the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation asof June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update procedures.
San Mateo Union High School District’ s proportion of the net pension liability was based on aprojection
of the District’ slong-term share of contributionsto the pension plan rel ative to the projected contributions
of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’ s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2018 and 2019 was as follows:

M easurement
Dates Fiscal Year CalPERS STRS
June 30, 2018 2018-19 0.20463% 0.11955%
June 30, 2019 2019-20 0.21075% 0.12176%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00613% 0.00220%

For theyear ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $8,840,124 and ($4,537,308)
for CAPERS and STRS, respectively. At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

CalPERS STRS Total
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of I nflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 6,080,060 $ - $28,634,429 $ - $34,723489 $

Difference between proportionate
share of aggregate employer
contributions and actual

contributions for 2018-19 - 1,271,871 - 11,257,030 - 12,528,901
Changes of Assumptions 6,669,552 139,853 35,177,397 - 41,846,949 139,853
Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience 5,587,426 - 702,163 6,181,494 6,289,589 6,181,494

Change in employer's proportion and

differences between the employer’s

contributions and the employer’s

proportionate share of contributions - 2,492,614 1,541,238 8,353,676 1,541,238 10,846,290

Net differences between projected
and actual investment earnings on
pension plan investments 1,602,820 5,569,631 1,602,820 5,569,631

Total $19,948,858 $ 3,904,338 $66,055,227 $31,361,831 $86,004,085 $35,266,169
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The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as areduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as

pension expense as follows:

Total Deferred

Outflows/

Year Ended (Inflows) of

June 30 CalPERS STRS Resources
2021 $ 5571,945 $ (307,439) $ 5,264,506
2022 3,185,320 579,084 3,764,404
2023 1,190,629 1,787,402 2,978,031
2024 7,566 2,873,331 2,880,897
2025 - 1,182,472 1,182,472
Thereafter - (55,882) (55,882)
Total $ 9,955,460 $ 6,058,968 $ 16,014,428

Actuarial Assumptions

Thetotal pension liabilitiesin the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations were determined using the

following actuarial assumptions:

CalPERS STRS

Vauation Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018
Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.10%

Inflation 2.50% 2.75%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.75% 3.50%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service  Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.15% 7.10%

Mortality Derived using CalPERS Derived using STRS

Membership Data for all Funds

@ Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

Membership Data for all Funds
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Discount Rate

CalPERS

Thediscount rate used to measure thetotal pension liability for the Plan was 7.15 percent and reflectsthe
long-term expected rate of return for the Plan net of investment expenses and without reduction for
administrative expenses. To determinewhether the municipal bond rate should be used in thecal culation
of adiscount rate, the amortization and smoothing periods adopted by the Board in 2013 were used. For
the Plan, projections of expected benefit payments and contributions at the statutorily required member
and employer rateswere performed to determineif the assetswould run out. Thetestsreveal ed the assets
would not run out for the Plan. Therefore, the long-term expected rates of return on pension plan
investments were applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability for the Plan. The crossover test results can be found on CalPERS website at
https://www.cal pers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-services/gasb.

Thelong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investmentswas determined using abuilding-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returnsof all of thefunds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returnswere cal culated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returnsfor both short-term and long-term, the present val ue of benefitswas cal culated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by cal cul ating the rounded single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both
short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent
rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

Thetable below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. Therate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
alocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

CalPERS
Assumed

Asset Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation  Years1-10®  vears11+®
Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

100.0%

@ An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period
® An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period
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Discount Rate

STRS

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers
will be made at statutory contribution ratesin accordance with the rateincrease per AB 1469. Projected
inflowsfrom investment earningswere cal culated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return
(7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions and benefit payments occur midyear. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan’ sfiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit paymentsto current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Thelong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investmentswas determined using abuilding-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from STRS general investment
consultant (Pension Consulting Alliance—PCA) asan input to the process. The actuaria investment rate
of return assumption was adopted by the board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent
experience study. For each future valuation, STRS consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return
assumption for reasonabl eness based on the most current capital market assumptions. Best estimates of
20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset
class are summarized in the table below:

STRS
Long-Term
Assumed Expected
Asset Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return @
Global Equity 47.0% 4.80%
Fixed Income 12.0% 1.30%
Rea Estate 13.0% 3.60%
Private Equity 13.0% 6.30%
Risk Mitigating Strategies 9.0% 1.80%
Inflation Sensitive 4.0% 3.30%
Cash/Liquidity 2.0% -0.40%
Total 100%

@ 20-year average
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, aswell aswhat the District’ sproportionate share of the net
pension liability would beif it were calculated using adiscount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

CalPERS
Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 88,536,250 $ 61,422,330 $ 38,929,460

STRS
Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 163,748,009 $ 109,965,686 $ 65,369,898

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’ sfiduciary net positionisavailablein the separately issued
CaPERS and STRS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2020, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plans required
for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan description. The District’ sdefined benefit OPEB plan provides OPEB for al full time employeesof
the District with aminimum of 10 yearsof service. The planisasingle-employer defined benefit OPEB
plan administered by the District. The Board of Trustees has the authority to establish and amend the

benefit terms.

Benefits provided. The District provides postemployment health care benefits as follows:

Certificated Classified
Certificated Classified Management Management
Benefit Types Provided Medical Medical Medical Medical
Duration of Benefits 10 years but not 10 years but not 10 years but not 10 years but not
beyond age 65 beyond age 65 beyond age 65 beyond age 65
Required Service 10 years 15 years 10 years 10 years
Minimum Age Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
Dependent Coverage Spouse Spouse Spouse Spouse
District Contribution Percent 100% to cap 100% to cap 100% to cap 100% to cap
Distrcit Cap $250 per month $250 per month $250 per month $250 per month
Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 16
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -
Active employees 955
971

Contributions. The Board of Trustees has the authority to establish and amend the contribution
requirementsof the District and employees. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District paid $92,914 for
retiree health benefits. Employees are not required to contribute to the plan.

51



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

7. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Net OPEB Liability

TheDistrict’snet OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions. Thetotal OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to al periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 2.75%
Investment rate of return 2.20%
Headlthcare cost trend rate 4.00%

The discount rate of 2.20% was based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. There are currently no plan
assets.

Changesin the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability
E)] (b) (@) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 2992695 $ - $ 2,992,695
Changes for the year:
Service cost 166,717 - 166,717
Interest 106,036 - 106,036
Differences between expected and
actual experience (142,628) - (142,628)
Assumption changes (685,876) - (685,876)
Contributions - employer - 92,914 (92,914)
Net investment income - - -
Benefit payments (92,914) (92,914) -
Administrative expense - - -
Net changes (648,665) - (648,665)
Balances at June 30, 2020 $ 2344030 % - $ 2,344,030
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changesin the discount rate. The following presentsthe net OPEB
liability of the District, aswell aswhat the District’ snet OPEB liability would beif it were calculated using
adiscount ratethat is 1-percentage-point lower (1.2 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.2 percent) than
the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.2%) (2.2%) (3.2%)
Net OPEB liahility (asset) $ 2,492,257 $ 2,344,030 $ 2,199,391

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the net OPEB liability of the District, aswell aswhat the District’ s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare cost trend ratesthat are 1-percentage-point lower (3.0 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (5.0 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Healthcare Cost 1% |Increase
(3%) Trend Rates (4%) (5%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 2,277,837 $ 2,344,030 $ 2,417,118

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. There are currently no assetsin the plan as there is no separate trust.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resourcesand Deferred I nflows of Resour ces Related to
OPEB

For theyear ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $10,306. At June 30, 2020, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resourcesrel ated to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ (133,305
Changes of assumptions 65,401 (641,047)
Total $ 65401 $ (774,352

Amountsreported asdeferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resourcesrelated to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Total Deferred
Outflows/(I nflows)
Year ended June 30 of Resources
2021 $ (48,961)
2022 (48,961)
2023 (48,961)
2024 (48,961)
2025 (48,961)
Thereafter (464,146)
Tota $ (708,951)

Payableto the OPEB Plan
At June 30, 2020, the District reported no outstanding amount of contributions to the Plan.
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FUND BALANCE

Asof these financial statements, the District has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which redefined how
fund balances of the governmental funds are presented in thefinancial statements. Thefollowing schedule
isasummary of the components of the ending fund balance by fund type at June 30, 2020:

Nonspendable:
Revolving cash
Stores inventories
Prepaid expenditures
Total Nonspendable

Restricted for:

Classified School Employee Professional
Development Block Grant
Low-Performing Students Block Grant
Lottery: Instructional Materias
CaWORKSs for ROCP or Adult Education
Adult Education Block Grant Program
Other Restricted Local
Child Nutrition: School Programs
Debt Service
Total Restricted

Committed:
Tier | Basic Aid Reserve
Tier 1l Basic Aid Reserve
2019-20 Carryover
2020-21 Deficit
Other Commitments
Total Committed

Unassigned:
Economic Uncertainties
Unassigned/Unappropriated
Total Unassigned

Tota

Bond Interest
General Building and Redemption Non-Major

Fund Fund Fund Funds Tota
$ 20,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 20,000
44,276 - - - 44,276
1,348,556 - - - 1,348,556
1,412,832 - - - 1,412,832
19,670 - - - 19,670
45,243 - - - 45,243
114,670 - - - 114,670
- - - 71,388 71,388
- - - 220,346 220,346
- 9,022,314 - 2,488,741 11,511,055
- - - 576,236 576,236
- - 40,347,292 - 40,347,292
179,583 9,022,314 40,347,292 3,356,711 52,905,900
8,097,033 - - - 8,097,033
8,097,033 - - - 8,097,033
1,029,166 - - - 1,029,166
18,017 - - - 18,017
6,087,413 150,513,534 - 21,689,741 178,290,688
23,328,662 150,513,534 - 21,689,741 195,531,937
5,398,023 - - - 5,398,023
(662,988) - - - (662,988)
4,735,035 - - - 4,735,035
$ 29,656,112 $ 159,535,848 $ 40,347,292 $ 25,046,452 $ 254,585,704
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JOINT VENTURES

The San Mateo Union High School District participates in ajoint venture under ajoint powers agreement
(JPA) with the San Mateo County SchoolsInsurance Group (SMCSIG). Therelationship between the San
Mateo Union High School District and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a component unit of the San
Mateo Union High School District for financia reporting purposes.

TheJPA arrangesfor and provideworkers’ compensation, property and liability and health insurancefor its
member school districts. The JPA isgoverned by aboard consisting of arepresentative from each member
district. The governing board controls the operations of the JPA independent of any influence by the
member districtsbeyond their representation on the governing board. Each member district paysapremium
commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionately toits
participation in the JPA.

Condensed audited financial information for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:

SMCSIG
Total Assets $ 30,122,943
Deferred Outflows of Resources 399,381
Total Liabilities 10,321,639
Deferred Inflows of Resources 92,715
Net Position $ 20,107,970
Total Revenues $ 47,186,957
Total Expenditures (42,682,077)
Change in Net Postion $ 4,504,880
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10.

11.

12.

COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under
terms of the grants, it is management’s opinion that any required reimbursement subsequently
determined will not have amaterial effect on the District’s financial position.

RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

PROPERTY AND LIABILITY

The Didtrict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errorsand omissions; injuriesto employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year ending June
30, 2020, the District participated in the SMCSIG public entity risk pool for property and liability
insurance coverage. Settled claimshave not exceeded thiscommercial coveragein any of the past three
years. There has not been a significant reduction in coverage from the prior year.

WORKERS COMPENSATION

For fiscal year 2019-20, the District participated in the SMCSIG public entity risk pool for workers
compensation, with excess commercial coverage provided by Arch Insurance Company.

EMPLOYEE MEDICAL BENEFITS

Denta and vision benefits are provided through the SMCSIG public entity risk pool.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In August 2020, the District entered into a Tax and Revenue Anticipatory Note (TRANS) for $13,420,000.
Theinterest rate is 4% and matures June 30, 2021. Asof thereport date, the District had not drawn down
any funds from the note.

TheDistrict’smanagement evaluated its June 30, 2020 financia statementsfor subsequent eventsthrough
November 23, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management is not
aware of any other subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the financia
statements.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL —GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal revenue
Other state revenues
Other local revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Services and other operating

expenditures

Capital outlay
Other outgo

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfersin
Operating transfers out
Other sources

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2019

Fund balances, June 30, 2020

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 156,400,181 $ 159,534,446 $ 159,888,558 $ 354,112
2,787,821 3,118,044 2,422,949 (695,005)
9,092,559 9,952,783 10,357,615 404,832
5,584,013 7,661,775 6,942,619 (719,156)
173,864,574 180,267,048 179,611,741 (655,307)
69,675,958 69,526,195 69,398,034 128,161
30,851,658 30,771,608 30,683,160 88,448
45,517,935 44,417,851 45,534,258 (1,116,407)
6,508,899 8,017,065 5,745,782 2,271,283
15,545,164 20,581,836 19,353,820 1,228,016
550,000 555,025 554,121 904
4,571,364 4,469,647 4,409,647 60,000
173,220,978 178,339,227 175,678,822 2,660,405
643,596 1,927,821 3,932,919 2,005,098
500,000 - - -
(3,696,906) (4,254,507) (4,255,261) (754)
- 21,506 21,506 -
(3,196,906) (4,233,001) (4,233,755) (754)
(2,553,310) (2,305,180) (300,836) 2,004,344
29,956,948 29,956,948 29,956,948 -
$ 27,403,638 $ 27,651,768 $ 29,656,112 $ 2,004,344




SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019

calPERS (] @ @ ® ® O

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.17824% 0.18521% 0.18479% 0.19903% 0.20463% 0.21075%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 20,235,018 $ 27,300,522 $ 36,496,554 $ 47,513,456 $ 54,559,869 $ 61,422,330
Covered payroll @ $ 18,188,183 $ 20,373,259 $ 18,911,499 $ 22,695190 $ 23,208,050 $ 26,735,718
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset)

as a percentage of covered payroll 111.25% 134.00% 192.99% 209.35% 235.09% 229.74%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability (asset) 83.38% 79.43% 73.90% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05%

3)

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions ¢ $ 2140931 $ 2413620 $ 2626429 $ 3524790 $ 4,191,838 $ 5,272,551

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019

STRS (] @ @ ® ® O

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.11457% 0.11719% 0.11438% 0.11300% 0.11955% 0.12176%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 66,950,663 $ 78,893,947 $ 92,515,407 $104,506,132 $109,876,848 $109,965,686
Covered payroll @ $ 47,409,009 $ 45,013,458 $ 48,622,814 $ 52,213,021 $ 56,407,586 $ 62,306,667
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability (asset)

as a percentage of covered payroll 141.22% 175.27% 190.27% 200.15% 194.79% 176.49%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability (asset) 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56%

3)

Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions ¢ $ 4209920 $ 4829944 $ 6,116,750 $ 7,534,339 $ 9,183,155 $ 10,654,440

@
@
®

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.

The Plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the employer during the measurement period. The
Plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on the Plan's proportion of fiduciary net position as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded
liability) contributions made by the employer during the measurement period.
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

CalPERS 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 ¥ 2018-19 2019-20
Contractually required contribution @ $ 2140931 $ 2413620 $ 2626429 $ 3524790 $ 4,191,838 $ 5,272,551
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution ® (2,184,216) (2,628,697) (3,493,497 (3,888,696) (5,318,906) (6,089,060)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (43,285) $ (215077) $ (867,068) $ (363,906) $ (1,127,068) $ (816,509)
Covered payroll $ 18,188,183 $ 20,373,259 $ 18,911,499 $ 22,695190 $ 23,208,050 $ 26,735,718
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll @ 11.771% 11.847% 13.888% 15.531% 18.062% 19.721%

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

STRS 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 ¥ 2018-19 ¥ 2019-20 ¥
Contractually required contribution @ $ 4209920 $ 4829944 $ 6,116,750 $ 7,534,339 $ 9,183,155 $ 10,654,440
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution @ (4,226,011) (6,138,654) (7,678,654) (8,784,508) (10,945,270) (20,265,896)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (16,091) $ (1,308,710) $ (1,561,904) $ (1,250,169) $ (1,762,115) $ (9,611,456)
Covered payroll @ $ 47,409,009 $ 45,013,458 $ 48,622,814 $ 52,213,021 $ 56,407,586 $ 62,306,667
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll @ 8.880% 10.730% 12.580% 14.430% 16.280% 17.100%

@ Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

@  Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the contractually required contributions. However, some employers may choose to make additional
contributions towards their side fund or their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plans exceed the contractualy required contributions. CalPERS
has determined that employer obligations referred to as "side funds' do not conform to the circumstances described in paragraph 120 of GASB 68, therefore are
not considered separately financed specific liabilities.

®  Covered payroll is the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based.
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AND RELATED RATIOS
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Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit paymens
Administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

District's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

OPERB liability
Covered-employee payroll

District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll

2018 2019 2020
$ 151,046 $ 155200 $ 166,717
99,623 97,554 106,036
- - (142,628)
- 75,783 (685,876)
(87,488) (90,988) (92,914)
163,181 237,549 (648,665)
2,591,965 2,755,146 2,992,695
$ 2,755,146  $ 2,992,695 $ 2,344,030
$ 87488 $ 90,988 $ 92,914
(87,489) (90,988) (92,914)

$ - $ - $ -
$ 2755146 $ 2,992,695 $ 2,344,030
0% 0% 0%
$74,908211  $79,615,636  $89,042,385

4%

4%

3%
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PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balance Budget (Non-GAAP) and
Actual — General Fund

The District employsbudget control by object codesand by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets
are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The budgets are revised during theyear by the Board of Trusteesto providefor revised
priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. The originally
adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as Required Supplementary
Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Changes in assumptions
There were no changes of assumptions.

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
Schedule of Pension Contributions

If an employer's contributionsto the plan are actuarially determined or based on statutory or contractual
requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension plan (or, if applicable, its
statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's actual contributions, the difference
between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (or statutorily or contractualy required), and
aratio of the actual contributions divided by covered-employee payroll.

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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D

Schedule of Changesin the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Benefit Changes
There were no changesin benefits during the year.

Changesin assumptions
There were no changes of assumptions.

Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percent of pay
Amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Fair value
Healthcare cost trend rates 4.00%

Salary increases 2.75%
Investment rate of return 2.20%
Retirement age

| Certificated [ 2020 CalSTRS 2.0%@60 Rates
The retirement assumptions are based on the 2020 CalSTRS
2.0%@60 Rates table created by CaSTRS. CaSTRS
periodically studies the experience for participating agencies
and establishes tables that are appropriate for each pool.

|Classified 2017 CaAPERS 2.0%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees
The retirement assumptions are based on the 2017 CaPERS
2.0%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees table created
by CaPERS. CalPERS periodicaly studies the experience for
participating agencies and establishes tables that are
appropriate for each pool.

|Classified 2017 CAPERS 2.0%@62 Rates for School Employees

The retirement assumptions are based on the 2017 CaPERS
2.0%@62 Rates for School Employees table created by
CaPERS. CaPERS periodicaly studies the experience for
participating agencies and establishes tables that are
appropriate for each pool.
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D - Scheduleof Changesin the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Continued)

Mortality

| Certificated | 2020 CalSTRS Mortality Table

The mortality assumptions are based on the 2020 CalSTRS
Mortdlity table created by CaSTRS. CaSTRS periodically
studies mortality for participating agencies and establishes
mortality tables that are modified versions of commonly used
tables. Ths table incorporates mortality projection as deemed
appropriated based on CalSTRS analysis.

|Classified 2017 CAPERS Retiree and Active Mortality for Miscellaneous
Employees

The mortality assumptions are based on the 2017 CaPERS
Retiree and Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees
table created by CaPERS. CaPERS periodically studies
mortality for participating agencies and establishes mortality
tables that are modified versions of commonly used tables.
Ths table incorporates mortality projection as deemed
appropriated based on CalPERS analysis.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed

Total Fund Balance

Foundation Special
Adult Deferred Special Capital Reserve For Foundation
Education Cafeteria Maintenance Revenue Facilities Capital Outlay Permanent
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 6,814,679 $ 432,993 $ 2,685,786 $ 1,071,646 $ 7,680,483 $ 4,820,181 1,248,370 $ 24,754,138
507,902 222,488 11,014 4,011 36,720 18,633 5,014 805,782
- 1,713 - - - - - 1,713
$ 7,322,581 $ 657,194 $ 2,696,800 $ 1,075,657 $ 7,717,203 $ 4,838,814 1,253,384 $ 25,561,633
$ 275441 $ 765 $ 70 $ 7,551 $ 21,649 $ - - $ 305,476
97,589 - - - - - - 97,589
101 80,193 1,612 - 27,710 - 2,500 112,116
373,131 80,958 1,682 7,551 49,359 - 2,500 515,181
291,734 576,236 - 711,128 - 1,777,613 - 3,356,711
6,657,716 - 2,695,118 356,978 7,667,844 3,061,201 1,250,884 21,689,741
6,949,450 576,236 2,695,118 1,068,106 7,667,844 4,838,814 1,250,884 25,046,452
$ 657,194 $ 2,696,800 $ 1,075,657 $ 7,717,203 $ 48333814 1,253,384 $ 25,561,633

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 7,322,581




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Adult Deferred Foundation Capital Special Reserve Foundation
Education Cafeteria Maintenance Special Revenue Facilities For Capital Permanent
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund QOutlay Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Federal revenue $ 513,735 $ 886,839 $ - $ -8 - $ - $ - $ 1,400,574
Other state revenues 5,060,537 71,967 - 5,808 - - - 5,138,312
Other local revenues 367,088 740,676 51,203 518,343 777,771 80,608 23,828 2,559,517
Totd revenues 5,941,360 1,699,482 51,203 524,151 777,771 80,608 23,828 9,098,403
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 2,485,212 - - 71,646 - - - 2,556,858
Classified salaries 1,315,233 1,054,381 - 732 - - - 2,370,346
Employee benefits 1,581,423 511,736 - 22,552 - - - 2,115,711
Books and supplies 169,911 480,621 - 98,561 - - 13,805 762,898
Services and other operating expenditures 343,097 86,043 75,836 122,639 45,239 89,082 58,426 820,362
Capital outlay - - - - - - - -
Other outgo - 80,193 - - - - - 80,193
Tota expenditures 5,894,876 2,212,974 75,836 316,130 45,239 89,082 72,231 8,706,368
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 46,484 (513,492) (24,633) 208,021 732,532 (8,474 (48,403) 392,035
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfersin - 675,754 - - - 657,601 - 1,333,355
Tota other financing sources (uses) - 675,754 - - - 657,601 - 1,333,355
Net change in fund balances 46,484 162,262 (24,633) 208,021 732,532 649,127 (48,403) 1,725,390
Fund balances, July 1, 2019 6,902,966 413,974 2,719,751 860,085 6,935,312 4,189,687 1,299,287 23,321,062
Fund baances, June 30, 2020 $ 6,949,450 $ 576,236 $2,695,118 $ 1,068,106 $ 7,667,844 $ 4,838,814 $ 1,250,884 $ 25,046,452
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Aragon High School
Burlingame High School
Capuchino High School
Hillsdale High School
Mills High School
Peninsula Alternative High School
San Mateo High School
Adult School
District
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Due to Student Groups
Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
July 01, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020
191,495 176,626 166,805 201,316
318,820 252,983 280,576 291,227
68,641 69,242 44,387 93,496
197,076 206,408 199,138 204,346
149,299 92,380 90,713 150,966
2,433 39 - 2,472
264,698 200,345 150,831 314,212
19,424 9,876 14,540 14,759
41,096 53 21,868 19,281
1,252,982 1,007,950 968,858 1,292,074
7,740 12,979 7,740 12,979
$ 1,260,722 $ 1,020,928 976,598 $ 1,305,053
$ 1,224,764 $ 980,456 905,193 $ 1,300,027
35,958 40,473 71,405 5,026
$ 1,260,722 $ 1,020,928 976,598 $ 1,305,053
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION

JUNE 30, 2020

The San Mateo Union High School District was established on July 26, 1902, and is located in San Mateo
County. Therewere no changesin the boundaries of the District in the current year. The District operates six
high schools, one continuation high school, and an adult education school.

GOVERNING BOARD

Term Expires
Name Office December
Greg Land President 2020
Marc Friedman Vice-President 2020
Robert H. Griffin Clerk 2022
Linda Lees Dwyer Trustee 2022
Peter H. Hanley Trustee 2022

ADMINISTRATION

Kevin Skelly, Ph.D.
Superintendent

Elizabeth McManus
Deputy Superintendent, Business Services

Kirk Black, Ed.D.
Deputy Superintendent, Human Resources and Student Services

Julia Kempkey
Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum & Instruction
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Second Revised
Period Annual Annual
Report Report Report
Secondary:
Ninth through Twelfth 8,745.96 8,799.95 8,755.54
Special Education 41.11 41.11 41.11
Total 8,787.07 8,841.06 8,796.65

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INTRUCTIONAL TIME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Standard 2019-20
Minutes Actual Instructional
Site Grade Leve Requirement Minutes Days Status

Aragon High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 66,412 180 In compliance
Burlingame High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 65,962 180 In compliance
Capuchino High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 66,610 180 In compliance
Hillsdale High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 67,912 180 In compliance
Muills High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 66,888 180 In compliance
San Mateo High School Grades 9 -12 64,800 65,982 180 In compliance

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Included in District Financial Statements,
Charter Schools Chartered by District or Separate Report

Design Tech Charter School #1647 Separately Reported

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

There were no adjustments to any funds of the District.

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Entity I dentifying Federal
Number Grantor and Program Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through California Department of Education
84.027 Special Ed: IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611

(formerly PL 94-142) 13379 $ 1,125,681

84.027 Special Ed: IDEA Local Assistance, Part B, Sec 611, Private School I1SPs 10115 2,653
Total Special Education Cluster 1,128,334

84.002A  Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL 14508 305,349
84.002 Adult Education: Adult Secondary Education 13978 77,000
84.002A  Adult Education: English Literacy & Civics Education 14109 131,386
Total Adult Education Cluster 513,735

84.365 NCLB: Title 11, Immigrant Education Program 15146 24,767
84.365 NCLB: Title I11, Limited English Proficient (LEP) Student Program 14346 100,931
Total Title Il Cluster 125,698

84.010 NCLB: Title |, Basic School Support 14416 * 586,653
84.424 NCLB: Title 1V, Part A Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant 15396 26,033
84.UNK EPA Environmental Education & Community Awareness Project 10048 26,750
84.367 NCLB: Title I, Part A, Teacher Quality 14341 124,652
84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education: Secondary, Section 131 14894 143,147
84.126 Department of Rehab: Workability |1, Transition Partnership 10006 261,682
Total U.S. Department of Education 2,936,684

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through California Department of Education
10.555 Child Nutrition: Meal Supplements in National School Lunch Program -

Monetary Assistance 13524 * 886,839
10.555 Child Nutrition: Meal Supplements in National School Lunch Program -
Nonmonetary Assistance 13524 102,283
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 989,122
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 989,122
Total Federd Programs $ 3,925,806

*  Tested as amajor program

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information. 72



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDSAND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Adopted
Budget Actuals Actuals Actuals
2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018

General Fund
Revenues and Other Financial

Sources $ 183,298,588 $179,611,741 $179,159,949 $ 160,786,343
Expenditures 181,886,530 175,678,822 171,594,518 154,916,292
Other Uses and Transfers Out 3,841,048 4,233,755 3,715,385 5,373,855
Total Outgo 185,727,578 179,912,577 175,309,903 160,290,147
Change in Fund Balance (2,428,990) (300,836) 3,850,046 496,196
Ending Fund Balance $ 27,227,122 $ 29,656,112 $ 29,956,948 $ 26,106,902
Available Reserves $ 5,571,827 $ 5,398,022 $ 5,016,018 $ 4,808,704
Designated for Economic

Uncertainties $ 5,571,827 $ 5,398,022 $ 5,016,018 $ 4,808,704
Undesignated Fund Balance $ $ $ - $ -
Available Reserves as a

Percentage of Total Outgo 3% 3% 3% 3%
All Funds
Total Long-Term Debt $874,010,270 $895,199,558 $788,317,150 $779,323,919
Average Daily Attendance at P-2 8,899 8,787 8,498 8,408

*Available reserves consist of al undesignated fund balances and all funds designated for economic uncertainty contained
within the General Fund

The general fund balance hasincreased by $3,549,210 over the past threeyears. For aDigtrict thissize, the
State of California recommends available reserves of at least 3 percent of total general fund expenditures,
transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District had incurred an operating deficit in the 2019-20 fiscal year, operating surplusfor the 2017-18 and
2018-2019 fiscal years and anticipates a deficit in the 2020-21 fiscal year.

Total long-term liabilitieshaveincreased by $115,875,639 over the past two years dueto the addition of G.O.
Bonds and increase of the net pension liability.

Average Daily Attendance (ADA) hasincreased by 379 over the past two years. Anincreaseof 112 ADA is
projected for the 2020-21 fiscal year.

See the accompanying notes to supplementary information. 73



SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District.
The purpose of attendance accounting from a fisca standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information
regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and
whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46201 through 46206.
Districtsmust maintain their instructional minutesin accordancewith the State’' s standards requirement
as required by Education Code Section 46201(b).

Schedule of Charter Schools

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial
reporting by Charter Schools.

Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Fund Financial
Reports to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity of the
District and is presented under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Title2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) requires adisclosure of the financial activities of al federally
funded programs. This schedule was prepared to comply with the Uniform Guidance and state
requirements. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedulemay differ from amountsused inthe
preparation of the general purpose financial statements. The District has elected not to use the 10-
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. The following schedule
provides a reconciliation between federal revenues reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances, and the rel ated expenditures reported on the Schedul e of
Expenditures of Federal Awards:

Federal
Catalog
Number Amount
Total Federal Revenues From the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance $ 3,823,523
Reconciling items
Food Distribution - Commaodities 10.555 102,283
Total Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 3,925,806

Schedule of Financial Trendsand Analysis

This schedule disclosesthe District's financial trends by displaying past years' dataaong with current
year budget information. Thesefinancial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the Digtrict's ability to
continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’SREPORTS



JamesMarta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'SREPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH STATE LAWSAND REGULATIONS

Board of Education
San Mateo Union High School District
San Mateo, California

Report on Compliance for Each State Program

We have audited the compliance of San Mateo Union High School District’ s (the” District”) compliancewith the
types of compliance requirements described in the State of California' s 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of
CdiforniaK-12 Local Education Agenciesand State Compliance Reporting (the“ Audit Guide”) to the state laws
and regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2020.

M anagement’s Responsibility

Compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulationsisthe responsibility of District’'s management.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Auditsof California
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of
Regulations, section 19810. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the state laws and regulations listed below occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide alegal determination of the District’s
compliance with those requirements.

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

Procedures
Description Performed
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance No, see below
Independent Study No, see below
Continuation Education Yes
Instructional Time for School Districts Yes
Instructional Materials
General Requirements Yes
Ratio of Administrative Employees to T eachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Sdaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Program No, see below
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 916-993-9494 fax 916-993-9489 75
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L ocal Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

Procedures
Description Performed
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools No, see below
Middle or Early College High Schools Yes
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment No, see below
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction No, see below
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice No, see below

School Districts, County Offices of Education and Charter Schools

Procedures
Description Performed
Cdlifornia Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After/Before Schools Education and Safety Program
General requirements No, see below
After School No, see below
Before School No, see below
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based No, see below
Charter Schools
Procedures
Description Performed
Attendance Not applicable
Mode of Instruction Not applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Not applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction Not applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based Not applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable

Wedid not perform any proceduresfor Kindergarten Continuance or K-3 Grade Span Adjustment becausethese
grade levels are not offered by the District.

Wedid not perform any proceduresfor Independent Study because the Average Daily Attendance reported for
this program was not material for compliance purposes.

Wedid not perform any proceduresrelated to Early Retirement Incentive Program, Juvenile Court Schools, After

Schools Education and Safety Program, Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction, District of
Choice or Independent Study-Course Based becausethe District did not offer these programsin the current year.
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We did not perform any procedures related to Contemporaneous Records of Attendance for Charter Schools,
Mode of Instruction for Charter Schools, Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for Charter
Schools, Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction for Charter Schools, and Annual
Instructiona Minutes-Classroom-Based for Charter Schools, Charter School Facility Grant Program becausethe
District did not have any charter schools.

Opinion on Compliance with State L aws and Requlations

In our opinion, San Mateo Union High School District complied, in all material respects, with the statelawsand
regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2020.

gw»wmthﬁ-if’

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 23, 2020
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JamesMarta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERSBASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTSPERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Board of Education
San Mateo Union High School District
San Mateo, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financia audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of San Mateo Union High School District (the“ District”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise San Mateo Union High School District 'sbasic financial statements, and haveissued our report thereon
dated November 23, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered District'sinternal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit proceduresthat are appropriatein the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of District’sinternal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’ s internal control.

A deficiency ininternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not alow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatementson atimely basis. A material weaknessisadeficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, ininterna
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the district’s financia
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, ininternal control that isless severe than amaterial weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control wasfor the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit wedid not identify any deficienciesininterna
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified. We did identify certain deficienciesin internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. 2020-01.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether District's financia statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materia effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Sandards.

San Mateo Union High School District’s Responseto Findings

The District’ s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedul e of
findings and questioned costs. The District’ sresponse was not subjected to the auditing proceduresappliedin the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

Thepurpose of thisreport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and complianceand the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the district’sinternal control or on
compliance. This report is an integra part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Sandardsin considering thedistrict’ sinternal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

gw«quMLLP

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 23, 2020
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JamesMarta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Education
San Mateo Union High School District
, Cdlifornia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the San Mateo Union High School District’ s (the“District”) compliance with the typesof
compliance requirements described in the August 2020 Edition of the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have adirect and material effect on each of District’ smajor federal programsfor theyear ended June
30, 2020. TheDistrict’smajor federa programsareidentified inthe summary of auditor’ sresults section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management isresponsible for compliance with federa statutes, regulations, and theterms and conditions
of itsfederal awards applicableto its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on compliancefor each of the District’ smajor federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliancein accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the August 2020 Edition of the
Title2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Regquirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), Auditsof States, L ocal Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materia effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those
reguirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Webelievethat our audit providesareasonable basisfor our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide alegal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance regquirements

referred to above that could have adirect and materia effect on each of itsmajor federa programsfor the
year ended June 30, 2020.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 80
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District isresponsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirementsreferred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirementsthat could have adirect and material effect on each major federa program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’sinterna control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not alow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on atimely basis. A material weaknessin internal control over complianceisadeficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with atype of compliance requirement of afederal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on atimely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
complianceisadeficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, ininterna control over compliancewith atype
of compliance requirement of afederal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify al deficiencies in interna control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of thisreport on internal control over complianceis solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, thisreport is not suitable for any other purpose.

%AMJ-MLLF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 23, 2020
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section | —Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Interna control over financia reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X _No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weakness(es)? X Yes None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
Interna control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X _No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance,
Section 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers

Name of Federa Program or Cluster

10.553,10.555 Child Nutrition
84.01 Titlel
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
State Awards
Type of auditor’ s report issued on compliance
for state programs: Unmodified
Interna control over state programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X _No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section |1 —Financial Statement Findings

2020-1 Payroll (30000)

Criteria:
Internal controls over payroll require adequate documentation, review and oversight to ensure the accuracy of
payments to employees.

Condition:

There were multiple employeesfound to have either overpayments or underpayments during the 2020 fiscal year.
Two of the underpayments were discovered when the involved employees brought them to management’s
attention, which prompted an internal payroll audit leading to the discovery of one other underpayment and one
overpayment. Out-of-pocket for health benefitsis calculated based on FTE. The District used .99 FTE rather than
.96 FTE for one employee. The result was an overpayment to the employee of $285. The District was able to
collect the amount from the employee with no issue. Another employee was provided a Personnel Action Form
authorizing a career increment; however, the payroll department was not notified of the change. As aresult, the
employee did not receive the approved raise when authorized in July 2017 through December 2019 when it was
discovered, which resulted in a$2,300 underpayment. The District and employee agreed to pay out the $2,300ina
lump sum during the January 2020 payroll. A third employee held a management position for ten years and
beginning in July 2018, became eligiblefor longevity pay. Again, the payroll department was not notified that the
employee was €eligible for longevity pay until April 2020. The result was a total $4,400 underpayment for the
period from July 2018 through March 2020. The District agreed to pay out the amount asalump sum during April
2020 payroll. Finaly, afourth employee had a child on their health plan which increased the amount deducted
from payroll. The child aged out of the plan during the 2018 calendar year, however payroll wasnot notified of this
fact. As aresult, extra deductions were taken out of employee's payroll from January 2019 through March 2020
when the discrepancy was brought up by the employee. The total additional deductions resulted in a $1,600
underpayment throughout the time period. The District agreed to alump sum payout of the amount during April
2020 payroll.

Cause:
The errors were caused in by insufficient documentation and/or insufficient review.

Effect:
The result of the errors was a net underpayment of approximately $8,000.

Recommendation:

Personnel action forms should be used for all payroll related changes. The form should be signed by the employee
and a supervisor. These change forms should immediately be delivered to the appropriate department so the
changes can be implemented in the appropriate pay period.

Corrective Action Plan:
1. .99FTEvs..96 FTE resultingin over payment of $285 for out-of-pocket health benefits: Thiswasan
oversight of one employee. PAFs will continue to be proofed by a second set of eyesin order to avoid
inaccuracies.

2. Career Incrementsfor Certificated Employees: PAFshave not historically been created for certificated
employees because it is an automatic step increase. Moving forwar d: PAFswill now be created for all
monetary changes for employees.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

3. Administrator career increment: Thiswasamisunderstanding by the HR Credential Analyst who was

not aware that he was responsible for tracking career increments for administrators. Currently: Since
discovering the error, the Credential Analyst is now aware of that responsibility and has created a
spreadsheet which lists al current certificated managerial employees and their years of service to the
District. This spreadsheet will be checked near the beginning of each year such that certificated
management that have achieved 10 years of managerial service with the District can be processed for their
career increment, granted they fulfill the other necessary conditions.

Over age Dependents and health benefits: In 2018, there were acouple of personnel changes after the
retirement of the previous Benefits Coordinator who had been in the position for many years. Therefore,
some things were overlooked while transitioning with personnel. Moving forward: HR Benefits will
review each overage dependent report that comesin from the medical carrier and request monthly overage
dependents reports from KCares (dental and vision). Any payroll related changes related to overage
dependents will be processed and submitted to Fiscal Services/Payroll at the time of receipt. Payroll
Change Forms will continue to be completed with al changes to the employees, spouses and their
dependents and being cognizant of all information being correct to avoid overpayments.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section |11 —Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section |1V — State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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SAN MATEO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGSAND RECOMMENDATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Findings and Recommendation

Internal Controls

2019-1 New Hire Process (30000)

The District should have a checklist of required items that
must be completed prior to a new employee starting. In this
case, if the District does not receive previous employment
history, then the employee would not start until the requisite
information is provided. When all information isobtained the
personnel department should review and approve the new
employee's placement on the salary schedule. This
information should then be reviewed and signed by the
employee.

2019-2 Unduplicated L CFF Pupil Counts (40000)

Students classified as “Free or Reduced Price Meals
(FRPM)” or “English Learner” (EL) status and are not
directly certified on the CALPADS 1.18 FRPM English
Learner/ Foster Youth-Student List Report must have
supporting documentation that indicates the student was
digible for the designation. Authority cited: Section
14502.1, Education Code. Reference: Sections 14502.1,
14503, 2574(b)(3)(C), 44238.02(b)(3)(B), and 41020,
Education Code.

Explanation
Current If Not
Status | mplemented

Implemented

Implemented
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